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FORM 51-102F4 

BUSINESS ACQUISITION REPORT 

 

ITEM 1 IDENTITY OF COMPANY 

 

1.1 Name and Address of Company 

 

RavenQuest Biomed Inc. (the “Company”) 

Suite 2300 – 1177 West Hastings Street 

Vancouver, British Columbia V6E 2K3 

 

1.2 Executive Officer 

 

The following executive officer of the Company is knowledgeable about the 

significant acquisition and this report: 

  

George Robinson 

Chief Executive Officer 

Phone: (604) 484-1230 

 

ITEM 2 DETAILS OF ACQUISITION 

 

2.1 Nature of Business Acquired 

 

On September 28, 2017, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, 

acquired (the “CL2G Acquisition”) the principal assets and business operations (the 

“CL2G Business”) of the CL2G group of companies (the “CL2G Group”), 

including an operating, turn-key fully equipped, cannabis operations training facility 

and related equipment (the “CL2G Acquisition”), pursuant to the terms of an asset 

purchase agreement dated September 28, 2017, a copy of which is available under 

the Company’s profile at www.sedar.com.  

 

Following completion of the CL2G Acquisition, the Company commenced 

operations as a specialized cannabis services provider, with a primary focus on 

providing investment in and management and advisory services to cannabis 

producers that are Licensed Producers or later stage Licensed Producer Applicants 

under the Access to Cannabis for Medical Producers Regulations (the “ACMPR”).   

 

Concurrently with the closing of the CL2G Acquisition, on September 28, 2017, the 

Company closed a non-brokered private placement of 21,000,000 common shares at 

a price of $0.30 per share for aggregate proceeds of $6,300,000. 

 

On September 29, 2017 the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired 

59,669,334 common shares of Alberta Green Biotech Inc. (the “AGB”), representing 

approximately 99.23% of the issued and outstanding common shares of AGB, 

pursuant to a share exchange agreement dated September 25, 2017, a copy of which 
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is available under the Company’s profile at www.sedar.com.  AGB is an Alberta 

which has applied to become a licensed producer of cannabis for medical purposes 

under the ACMPR.  Subsequently, on October 25, 2017, the Company acquired a 

further 400,000 common shares, for an aggregate of 60,069,334 common shares 

representing approximately 99.9% of the issued and outstanding common shares of 

ABG (the “AGB Shares”). 

 

Both the CL2G Acquisition and the AGB Acquisition were contingent on the 

Company having completed an equity private placement for aggregate minimum 

proceeds of $3,000,000. 

 

2.2 Date of Acquisition 

 

The effective date of the acquisition of the CL2G Business was September 28, 2017. 

 

The effective dates of the acquisition of the AGB Shares were September 29, 2017 

and October 25, 2017. 

 

2.3 Consideration 

 

As consideration for the CL2G Business, the Company issued an aggregate of 

8,080,000 common shares.   

 

As consideration for the AGB Shares, the Company issued an aggregate of 8,590,818 

common shares. 

 

2.4 Effect on Financial Position 

 

The Company presently has no plans or proposals for material changes in the 

business or affairs of the Company or the AGB which may have a significant effect 

on the financial performance or financial position of the Company.   

 

2.5 Prior Valuations 

 

None. 

 

2.6 Parties to Transaction 

 

The CL2G Business and the AGB Shares were by the Company, through its wholly-

owned subsidiary, from unaffiliated and independent third parties through an arm’s 

length transaction.  

 

2.7 Date of Report 

 

November 1, 2017 

 

ITEM 3 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The following financial statements are included as part of this Business Acquisition 

Report. 
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(a) Audited financial statements for the interim period ended April 30, 2017 and 

the fiscal period ended July 31, 2016 for each of the entities comprising the 

CL2G Group; and 

 

(b) Unaudited financial statements for the interim period ended June 30, 2017, 

and Audited Financial statements for the fiscal years ended September 30, 

2016 and September 30, 2015 for AGB. 

 

Auditor Consent 

 

Crowe MacKay, LLP, the auditors of the CL2G Group and AGB, have not provided 

their consent to include their audit reports by reference in this report. 
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Crowe MacKay LLP
Member Crowe Horwath International
1100 - 1177 West Hastings Street
Vancouver, BC V6E 4T5
+1.604.687.4511 Tel
+1.604.687.5805 Fax
+1.800.351.0426 Toll Free
www.crowemackay.ca

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of
1052503 B.C. Ltd (dba CL2G Consulting)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 1052503 B.C. Ltd (dba CL2G Consulting), which comprise the
statements of financial position as at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016, and the statements of comprehensive income
(loss), changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the periods then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the  Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 1052503 B.C. Ltd
(dba CL2G Consulting) as at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
periods then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of matter
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements which describes the material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the ability of 1052503 B.C. Ltd (dba CL2G Consulting) to continue as a
going concern.

"Crowe MacKay LLP"

Chartered Professional Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
July 25, 2017
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statements of Financial Position
April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
 Cash $ 66,549       $ 200,932
 Accounts receivable 153,615 34,547
 Income taxes recoverable 28,698 -
 Loan receivable 3,000 -
 Goods and services tax recoverable 23,279 56,251
 Prepaid expenses 4,808 4,808

279,949 296,538

EQUIPMENT (Note 4) 9,787 14,958

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES (Note 5) 319,375 208,732

DUE FROM SHAREHOLDERS (Note 6) -               18,606

$ 609,111      $ 538,834

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 141,151       $ 131,465

Due to shareholders (Note 6) 77,947 -
Income taxes payable (Note 9) - 18,670

 Bonuses payable - 266,000
 Deferred income 216,000 -

435,098 416,135

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital (Note 8) 226,200 226,200

 Deficit (52,187) (103,501)

174,013 122,699

$ 609,111     $ 538,834
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

April 30, July 31,
For the Periods Ended 2017 2016

SALES $ 257,866     $ 2,223,461

EXPENSES

 Advertising and promotion 13,397 6,766
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 7) - 66,500

 Consulting fees - 8,621
Depreciation (Note 4) 5,171 3,917

 Insurance 5,108 2,805
 Interest and bank charges 8,329 1,349
 Office and miscellaneous 15,679 14,942
 Professional fees 40,556 20,944
 Reimbursable expenses 79,232 1,864,863
 Travel, meals and entertainment 20,583 22,327
 Utilities 7,186 9,482
 Vehicle 2,578 2,770
 Wages and benefits 70 266,237

197,889 2,291,523

INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 59,977 (68,062)

OTHER ITEM
 Loss on foreign exchange - (16,769)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES 59,977 (84,831)

INCOME TAXES (Note 9) (8,663) (18,670)

NET AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) $ 51,314     $ (103,501)

EARNINGS PER SHARE – BASIC AND DILUTED $ 256.57     $ (517.51)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING –
BASIC AND DILUTED 200 200



1052503 B.C. LTD.
(dba CL2G Consulting)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
Periods Ended April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016

 Common
Shares

 Preferred
Shares

 Amount  Deficit  Total

 (Number)  (Number)
October 19, 2015                    -                -  $                 -  $                 -  $                 -
Issuance of shares               200            452          226,200                    -          226,200
Net loss                    -                -                    -         (103,501)        (103,501)
July 31, 2016                200            452          226,200         (103,501)          122,699
Net income                  -                -                    -              51,314            51,314

April 30, 2017                200            452  $      226,200  $       (52,187)  $      174,013

 Share Capital
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statements of Cash Flow

April 30, July 31,
For the Periods Ended 2017 2016

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Net income (loss) $ 51,314     $ (103,501)
  Item not affecting cash:
   Depreciation of equipment 5,171 3,917
   Amortization of intangible assets - 66,500

56,485 (33,084)

  Changes in non-cash working capital:
   Accounts receivable (119,068) (34,547)
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,686 131,465
   Income taxes (recoverable) payable (47,368) 18,670
   Deferred income 216,000 -
   Prepaid expenses - (4,808)
   Goods and services tax payable 32,972 (56,251)
   Bonuses payable (266,000) 266,000

(173,778) 320,529

  Cash flow from (used by) operating activities (117,293) 287,445

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
   Loan receivable (3,000) -
   Advances to related parties (110,643) (208,732)
   Purchase of equipment - (16,375)

 Cash flow used by investing activities (113,643) (225,107)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
   Advances (to) from shareholders 96,553 138,394
   Issuance of common shares - 200

  Cash flow from financing activities 96,553 138,594

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH FLOW (134,383) 200,932

Cash - beginning of period 200,932 -

CASH - END OF PERIOD $ 66,549     $ 200,932

CASH FLOW SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Interest paid $ 7,274     $ -

Income taxes paid $ 56,031     $ -

Assets acquired by issuance of preferred shares $ -     $ 226,000
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

1052503 B.C. Ltd. (the "Company") was incorporated provincially on October 19, 2015 under the
Business Corporations Act of British Columbia. The Company's principal business activity is physical
and network security consulting. The address of the Company's registered office is 301-460 Nanaimo
Street, Vancouver, BC and the Company’s principal place of business is at 121-3989 Henning Drive,
Burnaby, BC.

These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Company will continue as
a going concern, meaning it will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to
realize assets and discharge liabilities in the ordinary course of operations.  Different bases of
measurement may be appropriate if the Company was not expected to continue operations for the
foreseeable future.  As at April 30, 2017, the Company has not achieved profitable operations, has
accumulated losses of $52,187 (July 31, 2016 - $103,501) since inception and expects to incur further
losses in the development of its business, and has a working capital deficiency of $155,149 (July 31,
2016 - $119,597), all of which are material uncertainties that cast significant doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Company’s continuation as a going concern is
dependent upon support from shareholders and/or its ability to attain profitable operations to generate
funds. Although the Company has been successful in the past in obtaining advances from related
parties and shareholders as may be required, there is no assurance it will be able to do so in the future.
These financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC")
effective April 30, 2017.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial
assets measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out in Note 3. In addition,
these financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, except for cash
flow information.

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars.

Determination of functional currency

The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates. Management has determined that the functional currency for the Company is the Canadian
dollar. The functional currency determination was conducted through an analysis of the consideration
factors identified in IAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Critical estimates which are most subject to
uncertainty and have the most significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
values of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months are as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements
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a) Accounts receivable

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Use of Estimates and Judgements (continued)

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of account receivables. Allowances are applied to account receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Management
analyzes historical bad debts, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current economic
trends and changes in customer payment terms when making a judgment to evaluate the adequacy
of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of accounts receivable.

b) Revenue

The determination of the stage of completion for revenue arising from the rendering of services
requires significant judgment of the services performed to date and an estimate of the total services to
be performed.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

       a) Going concern

The assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern requires significant judgment.
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to a
going concern, as disclosed in Note 1.

b) Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Company recognizes liabilities and contingencies for anticipated
tax audit issues based on the Company’s current understanding of the tax law. For matters where it is
probable that an adjustment will be made, the Company records its best estimate of the tax liability
including the related interest and penalties in the current tax provision. Management believes they
have adequately provided for the probable outcome of these matters; however, the final outcome may
result in a materially different outcome than the amount included in the tax liabilities.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

At initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories depending
on the purpose for which the instruments were acquired: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and
receivables.

Subsequent measurement and changes in fair value will depend on their initial classification.  Financial
assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.
Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost. All other available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in other comprehensive income/loss
until the investment is derecognized or impaired at which time the amounts would be recorded in profit
or loss. Held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost.

The Company classified cash, accounts receivable, loan receivable, due from related parties, and due
from shareholders as loans and receivable.

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired. Financial assets are impaired when one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset have been impacted.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of all financial assets, excluding accounts receivable, is directly reduced by the
impairment loss.  The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an
allowance.  Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account.  Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost are reversed in subsequent
periods if the amount of the loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized.  Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial
assets are not reversed.

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, or other financial liabilities, as
appropriate.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial liabilities
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instrument (continued)

The Company classified accounts payable and accrued liabilities, due to shareholders, and bonuses
payable as other financial liabilities.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities have been translated at the year end exchange rate. Non-monetary
assets have been translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date of transaction. Revenues
and expenses have been translated using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions, except for depreciation and amortization, which has been translated at the same rate as
the related assets.

Foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets and liabilities are included in the determination
of earnings.

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company’s assets are reviewed to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment, if any. The recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Fair value is determined as the
amount that would be obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable and willing parties. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss for the period. For
an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but to an amount
that does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.  A transaction is considered to be a related
party transaction when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past events
where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation estimated at the end of each reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount receivable can be measured reliably.

Equipment

Equipment is stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciation. Equipment is depreciated
over its estimated useful life on a declining balance basis at the following rates and methods:

Computer equipment 55% declining balance method
Computer software 55% declining balance method
Furniture and fixtures 20% declining balance method

The Company regularly reviews its equipment to eliminate obsolete items. Government grants are
treated as a reduction of equipment cost.

Equipment acquired during the year but not placed into use are not depreciated until they are placed
into use.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of products when persuasive evidence of a
contractual arrangement exists, the products have been delivered to the customer, no significant
vendor obligations remain outstanding, the price is fixed or determinable, and collectability is
reasonably assured.

Revenue from the provision of services are recognized when the related service are rendered, if
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or fixed or determinable, and
collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue from the provision of long-term contracts are recognized on a percentage-of-completion
basis as the related services are rendered, if persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is
fixed or fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. The stage of completion is
determined by an estimate of the services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be
performed.

Amounts received from customers in advance of an arrangement satisfying all the revenue recognition
criteria are recorded as deferred revenue.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income taxes

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in shareholders' equity, in which case the income
tax is also recognized in shareholders' equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.

In general, deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of asset and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income
tax is determined on a non-discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date and are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset or
liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the assets
can be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current.

Intangible Assets

Intangible  assets with definite lives are  accounted  for  at  cost  less  accumulated  amortization.  The
carrying values of intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful lives based on
management’s best estimates.

Intangible  assets  are  tested  for  impairment  whenever  events  or  changes  in  circumstance
indicate that the assets might be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item exceeds its fair  value,
an impairment  loss  is  recognized  in profit or loss  in an amount  equal to  the excess.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings available to common shareholders by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted earnings per
share is computed similar to basic earnings per share except that the weighted average number of
shares outstanding is increased to include additional shares for the assumed exercise of stock options
and warrants, if dilutive. The number of additional shares is calculated by assuming that outstanding
stock options and warrants were exercised and that the proceeds from such exercises were used to
acquire common stock at the average market price during the reporting periods. In a loss period,
potentially dilutive common shares are excluded from the loss per share calculation as the effect would
be anti-dilutive.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Future accounting pronouncements

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of
the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9 was issued in December 2009, effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early adoption permitted if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015, and
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments.
Management anticipates that this standard will be adopted in the Company's financial statements for
the period beginning August 1, 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption
of this standard on its financial statements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring
and recognizing revenue.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. The Company is
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required
effective date.

IFRS 16 Leases

Effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2019, the scope of IFRS 16 includes leases
of all assets, with certain exceptions. A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. IFRS
16 requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model in a similar way
to finance leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees- leases
of 'low-value' assets (e.g. personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of
12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term,
a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability
as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting is substantially unchanged from today's
accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. The
company is currently evaluating the impact of IFRS 16 on its financial statements and plans to adopt
the new standard on the required effective date.

There are no other IFRS or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that may have a material
impact on the Company.
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4. EQUIPMENT
October 19, July 31, April 30,

Cost 2015 Additions 2016  Additions 2017

Computer Equipment $ - $ 15,601      $ 15,601    $ - $ 15,601

Computer Software - 1,274 1,274 - 1,274

        Furniture and Fixtures - 2,000 2,000 - 2,000

$ -  $ 18,875    $ 18,875   $    -    $ 18,875

Accumulated October 19, July 31, April 30,

Depreciation
2015

 Depreciation
2016

 Depreciation
2017

Computer Equipment $ - $ 3,575     $ 3,575    $ 4,510 $ 8,085

Computer Software - 292 292 368 660

Furniture and Fixtures - 50 50 293 343

$ - $ 3,917     $ 3,917 $ 5,171    $ 9,088

Net book value
April 30,

2017
July 31,

2016

Computer Equipment $ 7,516      $        12,026
Computer Software 614                    982
Furniture and Fixtures 1,657                 1,950

$ 9,787    $        14,958

5. DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

Due from 1052486 B.C. Ltd. (dba SIL Design Studios) $ 274,948 $      182,972

Due from 1052543 B.C. Ltd. (dba Synergy Solutions
Management)

43,436              24,769
Due from 1052624 B.C. Ltd. (dba Synergy Training
Solutions) 991                   991

$ 319,375    $     208,732

Advances to the above companies, related by common shareholders, are not secured, non-interest
bearing and have no set repayment terms.



1052503 B.C. LTD.
(dba CL2G Consulting)

Notes to Financial Statements
Periods Ended April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016

14

6. DUE TO / FROM SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to / from shareholders are not secured, non-interest bearing, have no set repayment
terms.

7. ASSETS ACQUIRED BY ISSUANCE OF PREFERRED SHARES

During the period ended July 31, 2016, the Company entered into an agreement with a shareholder for
the purchase of certain assets in exchange for the issuance of 452 preferred shares.  The assets, which
consisted of a computer equipment with a fair value of $2,500, work-in-progress on two projects in the
amount of $157,000, and intangible assets with a value of $66,500, were transferred to the Company
on a tax deferral basis using the section 85 rollover election under the Income Tax Act.

Work-in-progress was determined by an estimate of the costs incurred to October 19, 2015 as a
percentage of total costs incurred on two projects.  Intangible assets represent the fair value of contracts
acquired from the shareholder.  The intangible assets were amortized over the life of the contracts,
which were completed in January 2016.
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8. SHARE CAPITAL

 Authorized:
Unlimited Class "A" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, without par value
Unlimited Class "B" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "C" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "D" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "E" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "F" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "G" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "H" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "I" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "J" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "K" non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, retractable, redeemable at

a price to be determined by the directors, preferred shares, $0.01 par value, which is
equal to the paid-up capital

Unlimited Class "L", non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, redeemable at a price to
be determined by the directors, preferred shares, $1.00 par value, which is equal to the
paid-up capital

Unlimited Class "M", non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, redeemable at $500 per
share, preferred shares, $0.10 par value, which is equal to the paid-up capital

Unlimited Class "N", non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, redeemable at $1,000
per share preferred shares, $1,000.00 par value, which is equal to the paid-up capital

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

 Issued:
100 Common "Class A" voting shares $ 100   $ 100

50 Common "Class E" non-voting shares 50 50
50 Common "Class F" non-voting shares 50 50

452 Preferred "Class M" non-voting shares 226,000 226,000

$ 226,200   $ 226,200

On October 19, 2015, 100 common "Class A" voting shares were issued for $1.00 per share.

On October 19, 2015, 50 common "Class E" non-voting shares were issued for $1.00 per share.

On October 19, 2015, 50 common "Class F" non-voting shares were issued for $1.00 per share.

On October 19, 2015, 452 preferred "Class M" non-voting shares were issued for $500.00 per share
in exchange certain assets acquired (note 7).
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9. INCOME TAXES

As at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016, the effective tax rate of income tax varies from the statutory
rate as follows:

April 30,
2017

July 31,
2016

Income (loss) before income taxes $ 59,977 $ (84,831)
Statutory tax rates 26% 26%
Expected income tax expense (recovery) at statutory rates 15,570 (22,056)
Permanent differences 1,941 59,185
Effect of lower tax rate from small business deduction (8,692) (18,670)
Change in unrecognized tax benefits (156) 211

Current income tax expense $ 8,663 $ 18,670

There were no significant unrecognized deferred income tax assets at April 30, 2017 and July 31,
2016.

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following is a summary of the Company's related party transactions:

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

1052543 B.C. Ltd. (dba Synergy Solutions Management),
a company related by common shareholders
Consulting fees $ 26,653 $ -

George and Lisa Robinson, shareholders and directors
Wages and benefits $ -    $ 240,000

Family members of shareholders
Wages and benefits $ -    $ 26,000

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount,
which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments measured at fair value are classified into one of three levels in the fair value
hierarchy according to the relative reliability of the inputs used to estimate the fair values.  The three
levels of the fair value hierarchy are:

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liabilities either directly
or indirectly; and

Level 3 – Inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The fair value of these assets and liabilities approximates their respective carrying amounts due to
their short term nature except as otherwise noted. The Company does not currently hold any financial
instruments that are carried at fair value.

The Company is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive
risk management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks.  The following analysis
provides information about the Company's risk exposure and concentration as of April 30, 2017.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations.  Cash consists
of bank balances held in a major Canadian financial institution with a high credit quality and therefore
the Company is exposed to minimal risk.  The Company is exposed to credit risk from customers, of
which the maximum exposure is the carrying amount of cash and accounts receivable. In order to
reduce its credit risk, the Company reviews a new customer's credit history before extending credit
and conducts regular reviews of its existing customers' credit performance.  An allowance for doubtful
accounts is established based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific accounts, historical
trends and other information.  The Company has a significant number of customers which minimizes
concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations associated with financial
liabilities in full.  The Company manages liquidity risk through the management of its capital structure,
as outlined in note 12. As at April 30, 2017, the Company had a working capital deficiency of $155,149
(July 31, 2016 - $119,597).  All of the Company’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities of 30
days or due on demand and are subject to normal trade terms. The Company will require financing
from lenders, shareholders and other investors to generate sufficient capital to meet its short term
business requirements.

Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices.  Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk.
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12. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern, to pursue the development of its business and to maintain a flexible capital structure which
optimizes the cost of capital within a framework of acceptable risk. In the management of capital, the
Company includes the components of shareholders’ equity, as well as cash.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust its
capital structure, the Company may issue new shares, acquire new debt, acquire or dispose of assets.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. There were no changes
in the Company’s approach to capital management during the period ended April 30, 2017.

13.  SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On May 12, 2017, the Company, 1052543 B.C. Ltd dba Synergy Solutions Management, 1052624 B.C.
Ltd. dba Synergy Training Solutions, and 1052486 B.C. Ltd. dba SIL Design Studio (together, the
“CL2G Group”) entered into a letter agreement with Ravencrest Resources Inc. (“Ravencrest”) pursuant
to which Ravencrest will purchase certain assets and business operations of the CL2G Group.  As
consideration, Ravencrest will issue an aggregate of 8,080,000 common shares to the shareholders of
the CL2G Group.

Completion of the acquisition is contingent on a number of conditions precedent including receipt of all
requisite corporate, shareholder and regulatory approvals for the acquisition; completion by Ravencrest
of satisfactory due diligence review of the CL2G Group; execution of final transaction documentation;
and completion of concurrent financing by Ravencrest.

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk to the company's earnings that arise from fluctuations of foreign exchange
rates and the degree of volatility of these rates.  The Company is exposed to foreign currency
exchange risk on cash, accounts receivable, and accounts payable held in U.S. dollars, if any.  The
impact of a 10% change in the foreign exchange rate would not result in a material impact on the
financial statements as the Company did not have significant U.S. dollars balances at the period end.
The company does not use derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a
change in the interest rates.  In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, the
Company manages exposure through its normal operating and financing activities.  The Company is
not exposed to significant interest rate risk.

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.  The Company is not exposed
to  significant other price risk.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of
1052543 BC Ltd (dba Synergy Solutions Management)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 1052543 BC Ltd (dba Synergy Solutions Management), which
comprise the statements of financial position as at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016, and the statements of
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the periods then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the  Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 1052543 BC Ltd
(dba Synergy Solutions Management) as at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the periods then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

"Crowe MacKay LLP"

Chartered Professional Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
July 25, 2017
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Statements of Financial Position
April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

ASSETS
CURRENT
 Cash $ -     $ 5,064

Accounts receivable (Note 8) 51,982 2,595
51,982                  7,659

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES (Note 5) 53,896 28,637
DUE FROM SHAREHOLDERS 247 400

$ 106,125     $ 36,696

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
 Cheques in excess of deposits $ 5,633      $ -

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 4) 11,762 3,977
 Income taxes payable 7,497 3,590
 Sales tax payable 3,916 458
 Deferred income 16,000 -

Due to related parties (Note 5) 43,436 24,769

88,244 32,794

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital (Note 6) 400 400

 Retained earnings 17,481 3,502

17,881 3,902

$ 106,125     $ 36,696
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Statements of Comprehensive Income

April 30, July 31,
For the Periods Ended 2017 2016

SALES (Note 8) $ 86,593     $ 37,552

EXPENSES

 Advertising and promotion 1,597 -
 Consulting fees 5,100 3,500
 Interest and bank charges 555 361
 Office and miscellaneous 11,087 1,928
 Professional fees 5,248 2,590
 Reimbursable expenses 2,958 140
 Travel, meals and entertainment 685 2,921

Wages and benefits (Note 8) 29,477 1,020

56,707 12,460

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 29,886 25,092

INCOME TAXES  (Note 7) (3,907) (3,590)

NET AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 25,979     $ 21,502

EARNINGS PER SHARE – BASIC AND DILUTED $ 64.95     $ 64.96

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING –
BASIC AND DILUTED 400 331
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Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
Periods Ended April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016

 Common
Shares

 Amount  Retained
Earnings

 Total

 (Number)
October 19, 2015                    -  $                 -  $                 -  $                 -
Issuance of shares                400                400                    -                400
Net income                    -                    -            21,502            21,502
Dividends                    -                    -           (18,000)          (18,000)
July 31, 2016                400                400             3,502             3,902
Net income                  -                    -              25,979            25,979
Dividends                    -                    -           (12,000)          (12,000)

April 30, 2017                400  $            400  $        17,481  $        17,881

 Share Capital
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Statements of Cash Flow

April 30, July 31,
For the Periods Ended 2017 2016

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Net income $ 25,979     $ 21,502

  Changes in non-cash working capital:
   Accounts receivable (49,387) (2,595)
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 7,785 3,977
   Income taxes payable 3,907 3,590
   Deferred income 16,000 -
   Sales tax payable 3,458 458

(18,237) 5,430

  Cash flow from operating activities 7,742 26,932

INVESTING ACTIVITY
 Advances to related parties (25,259) (28,637)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
   Dividends paid (12,000) (18,000)
   Advances from related parties 18,667 24,769
   Repayment from (due from) shareholders 153 (400)
   Issuance of common shares - 400

  Cash flow from financing activities 6,820 6,769

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH FLOW (10,697) 5,064

Cash - beginning of period 5,064 -

CASH (CHEQUES IN EXCESS OF DEPOSITS) - END OF PERIOD $ (5,633)     $ 5,064

CASH FLOW SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Interest paid $ 223     $ -

Income taxes paid $ -    $     -
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

1052543 B.C. Ltd. (the "Company") is incorporated provincially on October 19, 2015 under the
Business Corporations Act of British Columbia. The Company's principal business activity is in project
management and project logistics. The company offers equipment staging and setup, testing and
commission prior to installation at customer sites. The address of the Company's registered office is
301-460 Nanaimo Street, Vancouver, BC and the Company's principal place of business is at
121-3989 Henning Drive, Burnaby, BC.

These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Company will continue as
a going concern, meaning it will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to
realize assets and discharge liabilities in the ordinary course of operations.  Different bases of
measurement may be appropriate if the Company was not expected to continue operations for the
foreseeable future.  The Company’s continuation as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to
continue achieving profitable operations to generate funds.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC")
effective April 30, 2017.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial
assets measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out in Note 3. In addition,
these financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, except for cash
flow information.

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars.

Determination of functional currency

The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates. management has determined that the functional currency for the Company is the Canadian
dollar. The functional currency determination was conducted through an analysis of the consideration
factors identified in IAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Critical estimates which are most subject to
uncertainty and have the most significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
values of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months are as follows:
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities have been translated at the year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary
assets have been translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date of transaction. Revenues
and expenses have been translated at the average rates of exchange during the year, except for
depreciation and amortization, which has been translated at the same rate as the related assets.

Foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets and liabilities are included in the determination
of earnings.

Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.  A transaction is considered to be a related
party transaction when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties.

Provisions

Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past events
where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Use of Estimates and Judgements (continued)

a) Accounts receivable

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of account receivables. Allowances are applied to account receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Management analyzes historical bad debts, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness,
current economic trends and changes in customer payment terms when making a judgment to
evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of accounts receivable.

b) Revenue

The determination of the stage of completion for revenue arising from the rendering of services
requires significant judgment of the services performed to date and an estimate of the total services
to be performed.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

a) Going concern

The assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern requires significant
judgment. The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles
applicable to a going concern, as disclosed in Note 1.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation estimated at the end of each reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instrument

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

At initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories depending
on the purpose for which the instruments were acquired: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and
receivables.

Subsequent measurement and changes in fair value will depend on their initial classification.  Financial
assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.
Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost. All other available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in other comprehensive income/loss
until the investment is derecognized or impaired at which time the amounts would be recorded in profit
or loss. Held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost.

The Company classified cash, accounts receivable, due from related parties, and due from
shareholders as loans and receivable.

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired. Financial assets are impaired when one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset have been impacted.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

Impairment losses on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost are reversed in subsequent
periods if the amount of the loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized.  Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial
assets are not reversed.

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, or other financial liabilities, as
appropriate.
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Income taxes

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in shareholders' equity, in which case the income
tax is also recognized in shareholders' equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.

In general, deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of asset and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income
tax is determined on a non-discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset
or liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the assets
can be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of products when persuasive evidence of a
contractual arrangement exists, the products have been delivered to the customer, no significant
vendor obligations remain outstanding, the price is fixed or determinable, and collectability is
reasonably assured.

Revenue from the provision of services are recognized when the related service are rendered, if
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or fixed or determinable, and
collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue from the provision of long-term contracts are recognized on a percentage-of-completion
basis as the related services are rendered, if persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee
is fixed or fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. The stage of completion is
determined by an estimate of the services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be
performed.

 Amounts received from customers in advance of an arrangement satisfying all the revenue recognition
criteria are recorded as deferred revenue.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings available to common shareholders by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted earnings per
share is computed similar to basic earnings per share except that the weighted average number of
shares outstanding is increased to include additional shares for the assumed exercise of stock options
and warrants, if dilutive.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instrument (continued)

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial liabilities
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The Company classified bank indebtedness, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and due to
related parties as other financial liabilities.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Earnings per share (continued)

The number of additional shares is calculated by assuming that outstanding stock options and
warrants were exercised and that the proceeds from such exercises were used to acquire common
stock at the average market price during the reporting periods. In a loss period, potentially dilutive
common shares are excluded from the loss per share calculation as the effect would be anti-dilutive.

Future accounting pronouncements

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of
the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9 was issued in December 2009, effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early adoption permitted if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015, and
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments.
Management anticipates that this standard will be adopted in the Company's financial statements for
the period beginning August 1, 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption
of this standard on its financial statements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring
and recognizing revenue.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. The Company is
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required
effective date.

IFRS 16 Leases

Effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2019, the scope of IFRS 16 includes leases
of all assets, with certain exceptions. A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. IFRS
16 requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model in a similar way
to finance leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees- leases
of 'low-value' assets (e.g. personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of
12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term,
a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability
as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting is substantially unchanged from today's
accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Future accounting pronouncements (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The company is currently evaluating the impact of IFRS 16 on its financial statements and plans to
adopt the new standard on the required effective date.

There are no other IFRS or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that may have a material
impact on the Company.

4. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

Accounts payable $ 8,262      $ 478
Accrued liabilities 3,500 3,500

$ 11,762    $ 3,977

5. DUE TO / FROM RELATED PARTIES

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

Due from 1052486 B.C. Ltd. (dba SIL Design Studios) $ 53,896    $ 28,637

Due to 1052503 B.C. Ltd. (dba CL2G Consulting) $ 43,436    $ 24,769

Advances to/from the above companies, related by common shareholders, are not secured,
non-interest bearing and have no set repayment terms.
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6. SHARE CAPITAL

 Authorized:
Unlimited Class "A" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, without par value
Unlimited Class "B" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "C" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "D" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "E" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "F" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "G" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "H" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "I" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "J" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "K" non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, retractable, redeemable at

a price to be determined by the directors, preferred shares, $0.01 par value, which is
equal to the paid-up capital

Unlimited Class "L", non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, redeemable at a price to
be determined by the directors, preferred shares, $1.00 par value, which is equal to the
paid-up capital

Unlimited Class "M", non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, redeemable at $500 per
share, preferred shares, $0.10 par value, which is equal to the paid-up capital

Unlimited Class "N", non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, redeemable at $1,000 per
share preferred shares, $1,000.00 par value, which is equal to the paid-up capital

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

 Issued:
200 Common "Class A" voting shares $ 200 $ 200

67 Common "Class E" non-voting shares 67 67
67 Common "Class F" non-voting shares 67 67
66 Common "Class G" non-voting shares 66 66

$ 400 $ 400

On October 19, 2015, 100 common "Class A" voting shares were issued at $1.00 per share.

On October 19, 2015, 50 common "Class E" non-voting shares were issued at $1.00 per share.

On October 19, 2015, 50 common "Class F" non-voting shares were issued at $1.00 per share.

On January 25, 2016, 66 common "Class G" non-voting shares were issued at $1.00 per share.

On January 25, 2016, 100 common "Class A" voting shares were issued at $1.00 per share.

On January 25, 2016, 17 common "Class E" non-voting shares were issued at $1.00 per share.

On January 25, 2016, 17 common "Class F" non-voting shares were issued at $1.00 per share.
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7. INCOME TAXES

As at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016, the effective tax rate of income tax varies from the statutory
rate as follows:

April 30,
2017

July 31,
2016

Income before income taxes $ 29,886 $ 25,092
Statutory tax rates 26% 26%
Expected income tax expense at statutory rates 7,771 6,524
Non-deductible items 93 179
Effect of lower tax rate from small business deduction (3,932) (3,590)
Change in unrecognized tax benefits (25) 477

Current income tax expense $ 3,907 $ 3,590

There were no significant unrecognized deferred income tax assets at April 30, 2017 and July 31,
2016.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following is a summary of the Company's related party transactions:

April 30,
2017

July 31,
2016

1052503 B.C. Ltd. (dba CL2G Consulting), a company related by
common shareholders

Sales $ 26,653     $ -

Jason Morris, shareholder
Dividends $ 12,000 $ 18,000
Wages and benefits 25,575 -

$ 37,575 $ 18,000

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount,
which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

Included in accounts receivables at April 30, 2017 was $10,912 (July 31, 2016 – Nil) owing from
1052503 B.C. Ltd dba CL2G Consulting.
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments measured at fair value are classified into one of three levels in the fair value
hierarchy according to the relative reliability of the inputs used to estimate the fair values.  The three
levels of the fair value hierarchy are:

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liabilities either directly
or indirectly; and

Level 3 – Inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The fair value of these assets and liabilities approximates their respective carrying amounts due to
their short term nature except as otherwise noted. The Company does not currently hold any financial
instruments that are carried at fair value.

The Company is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive
risk management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations.  Cash consists
of bank balances held in a major Canadian financial institution with a high credit quality and therefore
the Company is exposed to minimal risk.  The Company is exposed to credit risk from customers, of
which the maximum exposure is the carrying amount of accounts receivable. In order to reduce its
credit risk, the Company reviews a new customer's credit history before extending credit and conducts
regular reviews of its existing customers' credit performance.  An allowance for doubtful accounts is
established based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific accounts, historical trends and
other information.  The Company has a significant number of customers which minimizes
concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations associated with financial
liabilities in full.  The Company manages liquidity risk through the management of its capital structure,
as outlined in note 10. As at April 30, 2017, the Company had a working capital deficiency of $36,262
(July 31, 2016 - $25,135).  All of the Company’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities of 30
days or due on demand and are subject to normal trade terms. The Company will require financing
from lenders, shareholders and other investors to generate sufficient capital to meet its short term
business requirements.

Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices.  Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk to the company's earnings that arise from fluctuations of foreign exchange
rates and the degree of volatility of these rates.  The Company is not exposed to significant foreign
currency exchange risk.
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a
change in the interest rates.  In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, the
Company manages exposure through its normal operating and financing activities.  The Company is
not exposed to significant interest rate risk.

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.  The Company is not exposed
to significant other price risk.

10. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern, to pursue the development of its business and to maintain a flexible capital structure which
optimizes the cost of capital within a framework of acceptable risk. In the management of capital, the
Company includes the components of shareholders’ equity, as well as cash.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust its
capital structure, the Company may issue new shares, acquire new debt, acquire or dispose of assets.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. There were no changes
in the Company’s approach to capital management during the period ended April 30, 2017.

11.  SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On May 12, 2017, the Company, 1052624 B.C. Ltd. dba Synergy Training Solutions, 1052486 B.C.
Ltd. dba SIL Design Studio, and 1052503 B.C. Ltd. dba CL2G Consulting (together, the “CL2G Group”)
entered into a letter agreement with Ravencrest Resources Inc. (“Ravencrest”) pursuant to which
Ravencrest will purchase certain assets and business operations of the CL2G Group.  As
consideration, Ravencrest will issue an aggregate of 8,080,000 common shares to the shareholders
of the CL2G Group.

Completion of the acquisition is contingent on a number of conditions precedent including receipt of
all requisite corporate, shareholder and regulatory approvals for the acquisition; completion by
Ravencrest of satisfactory due diligence review of the CL2G Group; execution of final transaction
documentation; and completion of concurrent financing by Ravencrest.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of
1052486 BC Ltd (dba SIL Design Studios)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 1052486 BC Ltd (dba SIL Design Studios), which comprise
the statements of financial position as at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016, and the statements of comprehensive loss,
changes in shareholders' deficit and cash flows for the periods then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the  Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 1052486 BC Ltd
(dba SIL Design Studios) as at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
periods then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of matter
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements which describes the material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the ability of 1052486 BC Ltd (dba SIL Design Studios) to continue as a
going concern.

"Crowe MacKay LLP"

Chartered Professional Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
July 25, 2017
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Statements of Financial Position
April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

ASSETS

DUE FROM SHAREHOLDERS $ 200     $ 200
EQUIPMENT (Note 4) 161,718 163,340

$ 161,918    $ 163,540

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT
CURRENT

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 5) $ 1,000      $ 32,209
Due to related parties (Note 6) 328,844 211,609

329,844 243,818

SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Share capital (Note 7) 200 200

 Deficit (168,126) (80,478)

(167,926) (80,278)

$ 161,918     $ 163,540
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Statements of Comprehensive Loss

April 30, July 31,
For the Periods Ended 2017 2016

EXPENSES
 Depreciation $ 40,057     $ 29,589
 Meals and entertainment - 4,723
 Office and miscellaneous 5,481 9,112
 Professional fees - 2,327
 Rental 32,736 29,031
 Utilities 8,307 5,483

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (86,581) (80,265)

LOSS ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE (1,067) (213)

NET AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS $ (87,648)     $ (80,478)

LOSS PER SHARE – BASIC AND DILUTED $ (438.25)     $ (402.39)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING –
BASIC AND DILUTED 200 200
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Statements of Shareholders' Deficit
Periods Ended April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016

 Common
Shares

 Amount  Deficit  Total

 (Number)
October 19, 2015                    -  $                 -  $                 -  $                 -
Issuance of shares                200                200                    -                200
Net loss                    -                    -           (80,478)          (80,478)
July 31, 2016                200                200           (80,478)          (80,278)
Net loss                  -                    -           (87,648)          (87,648)

April 30, 2017                200  $            200  $     (168,126) $     (167,926)

 Share Capital
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Statements of Cash Flow

April 30, July 31,
For the Periods Ended 2017 2016

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Net loss $ (87,648)     $ (80,478)
  Item not affecting cash:
   Depreciation 40,057 29,589
   Loss on foreign exchange 1,067 213

(46,524) (50,676)
  Change in non-cash working capital:
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (32,276) 31,996

  Cash flow used by operating activities (78,800) (18,680)

INVESTING ACTIVITY
   Purchase of equipment (38,435) (192,929)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
   Advances from related parties 117,235 211,609
   Due from shareholders - (200)
   Issuance of common shares - 200

  Cash flow from financing activities 117,235 211,609

INCREASE IN CASH FLOW - -

Cash - beginning of period - -

CASH - END OF PERIOD $ -     $ -

CASH FLOW SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Interest paid $ -     $ -

Income taxes paid $ -     $ -
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

1052486 B.C. Ltd. (the "Company") is incorporated provincially on October 19, 2015 under the
Business Corporations Act of British Columbia. The Company's principal business activity is physical
and network security consulting. The address of the Company's registered office is 301-460 Nanaimo
Street, Vancouver, BC and the Company's principal place of business is at 121-3989 Henning Drive,
Burnaby, BC.

These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Company will continue as
a going concern, meaning it will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to
realize assets and discharge liabilities in the ordinary course of operations.  Different bases of
measurement may be appropriate if the Company was not expected to continue operations for the
foreseeable future.  As at April 30, 2017, the Company has not achieved profitable operations, has
accumulated losses of $168,126 (July 31, 2016 - $80,478) since inception and expects to incur further
losses in the development of its business, and has a working capital deficiency of $329,844 (July 31,
2016 - $243,818), all of which are material uncertainties that cast significant doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Company’s continuation as a going concern is
dependent upon support from related parties and/or shareholders and/or its ability to attain profitable
operations to generate funds. Although the Company has been successful in the past in obtaining
advances from related parties and shareholders as may be required, there is no assurance it will be
able to do so in the future. These financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result
from the outcome of this uncertainty.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC")
effective April 30, 2017.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial
assets measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out in Note 3. In addition,
these financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, except for cash
flow information.

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars.

Determination of functional currency

The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates. management has determined that the functional currency for the Company is the Canadian
dollar. The functional currency determination was conducted through an analysis of the consideration
factors identified in IAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Critical estimates which are most subject to
uncertainty and have the most significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
values of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months are as follows:
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a) Equipment

The assessment of the potential impairment of the carrying value and recoverability of equipment is
based on management’s best estimates.  The determination of the estimated useful lives of equipment
is a matter of judgment which will impact the amount and timing of the related depreciation included in
profit or loss.

Information about the critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are in included in the following notes:

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

At initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories depending
on the purpose for which the instruments were acquired: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), held to maturity investments, available for sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and
receivables.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Use of Estimates and Judgements (continued)

a) Going concern

The assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern requires significant judgment.
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to a
going concern, as disclosed in Note 1.

b) Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Company recognizes liabilities and contingencies for anticipated
tax audit issues based on the Company’s current understanding of the tax law. For matters where it is
probable that an adjustment will be made, the Company records its best estimate of the tax liability
including the related interest and penalties in the current tax provision. Management believes they
have adequately provided for the probable outcome of these matters; however, the final outcome may
result in a materially different outcome than the amount included in the tax liabilities.
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Subsequent measurement and changes in fair value will depend on their initial classification.  Financial
assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.
Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost. All other available for sale financial assets
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in other comprehensive income/loss
until the investment is derecognized or impaired at which time the amounts would be recorded in profit
or loss. Held to maturity investments and loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost.

The Company classified due from shareholders as loans and receivable.

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired. Financial assets are impaired when one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset have been impacted.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instrument (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of all financial assets, excluding accounts receivable, is directly reduced by the
impairment loss.  The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an
allowance.  Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account.  Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost are reversed in subsequent
periods if the amount of the loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized.  Impairment losses on available for sale financial
assets are not reversed.

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, or other financial liabilities, as
appropriate.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial liabilities
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The Company classified accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to related parties as other
financial liabilities.

Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.  A transaction is considered to be a related
party transaction when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties.
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Provisions

Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past events
where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation estimated at the end of each reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount receivable can be measured reliably.

Equipment

Equipment is stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciation. Equipment is depreciated
over its estimated useful life on a declining balance basis at the following rates and methods:

Equipment 20% declining balance method
Furniture and fixtures 20% declining balance method
Computer equipment 55% declining balance method

The Company regularly reviews its equipment to eliminate obsolete items. Government grants are
treated as a reduction of equipment cost.

Equipment acquired during the year but not placed into use are not depreciated until they are placed
into use.

Income taxes

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in shareholders' equity, in which case the income
tax is also recognized in shareholders' equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.

In general, deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of asset and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income
tax is determined on a non-discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset
or liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the assets
can be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings available to common shareholders by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted earnings per
share is computed similar to basic earnings per share except that the weighted average number of
shares outstanding is increased to include additional shares for the assumed exercise of stock options
and warrants, if dilutive. The number of additional shares is calculated by assuming that outstanding
stock options and warrants were exercised and that the proceeds from such exercises were used to
acquire common stock at the average market price during the reporting periods. In a loss period,
potentially dilutive common shares are excluded from the loss per share calculation as the effect
would be anti-dilutive.

Future accounting pronouncements

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of
the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9 was issued in December 2009, effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early adoption permitted if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015, and
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments.
Management anticipates that this standard will be adopted in the Company's financial statements for
the period beginning August 1, 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption
of this standard on its financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

Effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2019, the scope of IFRS 16 includes leases
of all assets, with certain exceptions. A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. IFRS
16 requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model in a similar way
to finance leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees- leases
of 'low-value' assets (e.g. personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of
12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term,
a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability
as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting is substantially unchanged from today's
accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. The
company is currently evaluating the impact of IFRS 16 on its financial statements and plans to adopt
the new standard on the required effective date.

There are no other IFRS or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that may have a material
impact on the Company.
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4. EQUIPMENT
 October 19,  July 31, April 30,

Cost 2015  Additions 2016 Additions 2017

Office Equipment  $ -    $ 88,477     $ 88,477 $ 27,230 $ 115,707
Furniture - 45,614 45,614 - 45,614
Computer Equipment - 58,838 58,838 11,205 70,043

$ -   $ 192,929     $ 192,929     $ 38,435     $ 231,364

Accumulated
Depreciation

 October 19,  July 31, April 30,
2015  Depreciation 2016 Depreciation 2017

Office Equipment $ -     $ 8,847     $ 8,847 $ 13,987 $ 22,834
Furniture - 4,561 4,561 6,159 10,720
Computer Equipment - 16,181 16,181 19,911 36,092

$ -     $ 29,589     $ 29,589     $ 40,057     $ 69,646

April 30, July 31,
Net book value 2017 2016

Office Equipment $ 92,873       $ 79,630
Furniture 34,894 41,053
Computer Equipment 33,951 42,657

$ 161,718    $ 163,340

5. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

Accounts payable $ -       $ 31,209
Accrued liabilities 1,000 1,000

$ 1,000    $ 32,209
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6. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

Due to 1052503 B.C. Ltd (dba CL2G Consulting) $ 274,948     $ 182,972

Due to 1052543 B.C. Ltd. (dba Synergy Solutions
Management) 53,896 28,637

$ 328,844     $ 211,609

Advances from the above companies, related by common shareholders, are not secured, non-interest
bearing and have no set repayment terms.

7. SHARE CAPITAL

 Authorized:
Unlimited Class "A" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, without par value
Unlimited Class "B" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "C" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "D" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "E" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "F" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "G" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "H" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "I" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "J" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "K" non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, retractable, redeemable at

a price to be determined by the directors, preferred shares, $0.01 par value, which is
equal to the paid-up capital

Unlimited Class "L", non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, redeemable at a price to
be determined by the directors, preferred shares, $1.00 par value, which is equal to the
paid-up capital

Unlimited Class "M", non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, redeemable at $500 per
share, preferred shares, $0.10 par value, which is equal to the paid-up capital

Unlimited Class "N", non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, redeemable at $1,000 per
share preferred shares, $1,000.00 par value, which is equal to the paid-up capital

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

 Issued:
100 Common "Class A" voting shares $ 100 $ 100

50 Common "Class E" non-voting shares 50 50
50 Common "Class F" non-voting shares 50 50

$ 200 $ 200
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7.     SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

On October 19, 2015, 100 common "Class A" voting shares were issued for $1.00 per share.

On October 19, 2015, 50 common "Class E" non-voting shares were issued for $1.00 per share.

On October 19, 2015, 50 common "Class F" non-voting shares were issued for $1.00 per share.

8. INCOME TAXES

As at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016, the effective tax rate of income tax varies from the statutory
rate as follows:

April 30,
2017

July 31,
2016

Income (loss) before income taxes $ (87,648) $ (80,478)
Statutory tax rates 26% 26%
Expected income tax expense (recovery) at statutory rates (22,788) (20,924)
Non-deductible items - 700
Effect of lower tax rate from small business deduction 437 389
Change in unrecognized tax benefits 22,351 19,835

Income tax expense (recovery) $ - $ -

The significant components of the Company’s deferred income tax assets are as follows:

April 30,
2017

July 31,
2016

Cumulative eligible capital deduction $ 200 $ 200
Capital cost allowance 3,000 4,900
Non-capital loss carryforwards 38,900 14,700

42,100 19,800
Unrecognized deferred income tax assets (42,100) (19,800)

$ - $ -

At April 30, 2017, the Company had non-capital losses of approximately $153,000 (July 31, 2016
– $58,000) which may be available to offset future income for Canadian income tax purposes.
These losses expire between 2036 and 2037.

9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments measured at fair value are classified into one of three levels in the fair value
hierarchy according to the relative reliability of the inputs used to estimate the fair values.  The three
levels of the fair value hierarchy are:

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liabilities either directly
or indirectly; and
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Level 3 – Inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The fair value of these assets and liabilities approximates their respective carrying amounts due to
their short term nature except as otherwise noted. The Company does not currently hold any financial
instruments that are carried at fair value.

The Company is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive
risk management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations.  The Company
is not exposed to significant credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations associated with financial
liabilities in full.  The Company manages liquidity risk through the management of its capital structure,
as outlined in note 10. As at April 30, 2017, the Company had a working capital deficiency of $329,844
(July 31, 2016 - $243,818).  All of the Company’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities of 30
days or due on demand and are subject to normal trade terms. The Company will require financing
from lenders, shareholders and other investors to generate sufficient capital to meet its short term
business requirements.

Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices.  Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk to the company's earnings that arise from fluctuations of foreign exchange
rates and the degree of volatility of these rates.  The Company is not exposed to significant foreign
currency exchange risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a
change in the interest rates.  In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, the
Company manages exposure through its normal operating and financing activities.  The Company is
not exposed to significant interest rate risk.

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.  The Company is not exposed
to significant other price risk.
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10. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern, to pursue the development of its business and to maintain a flexible capital structure which
optimizes the cost of capital within a framework of acceptable risk. In the management of capital, the
Company includes the components of shareholders’ equity (deficit), as well as cash.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust its
capital structure, the Company may issue new shares, acquire new debt, acquire or dispose of assets.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. There were no changes
in the Company’s approach to capital management during the period ended April 30, 2017.

11.  SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On May 12, 2017, the Company, 1052543 B.C. Ltd dba Synergy Solutions Management, 1052624
B.C. Ltd. dba Synergy Training Solutions, and 1052503 B.C. Ltd. dba CL2G Consulting (together, the
“CL2G Group”) entered into a letter agreement with Ravencrest Resources Inc. (“Ravencrest”)
pursuant to which Ravencrest will purchase certain assets and business operations of the CL2G
Group.  As consideration, Ravencrest will issue an aggregate of 8,080,000 common shares to the
shareholders of the CL2G Group.

Completion of the acquisition is contingent on a number of conditions precedent including receipt of
all requisite corporate, shareholder and regulatory approvals for the acquisition; completion by
Ravencrest of satisfactory due diligence review of the CL2G Group; execution of final transaction
documentation; and completion of concurrent financing by Ravencrest.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of
1052624 BC Ltd (dba Synergy Training Solutions)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 1052624 BC Ltd (dba Synergy Training Solutions), which
comprise the statements of financial position as at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016, and the statements of
comprehensive loss, changes in shareholders' deficit and cash flows for the periods then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the  Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 1052624 BC Ltd
(dba Synergy Training Solutions) as at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016 and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the periods then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of matter
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements which describes the material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the ability of 1052624 BC Ltd (dba Synergy Training Solutions) to
continue as a going concern.

"Crowe MacKay LLP"

Chartered Professional Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
July 25, 2017
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Statements of Financial Position
April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

ASSETS

DUE FROM SHAREHOLDERS $ 200     $ 200

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT
CURRENT
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,000     $ 1,000

Due to related party (Note 4) 991 991

1,991 1,991

SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Share capital (Note 5) 200 200

 Deficit (1,991) (1,991)

(1,791) (1,791)

$ 200     $ 200
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Statements of Comprehensive Loss

April 30, July 31,
For the Periods Ended 2017 2016

EXPENSES
 Accounting fees $ -     $ 1,000
 Legal fees - 991

- 1,991

NET AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS $ -     $ (1,991)

LOSS PER SHARE – BASIC AND DILUTED $ -     $ (9.96)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING –
BASIC AND DILUTED 200 200
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Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Deficit
Periods Ended April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016

 Common
Shares

 Amount  Deficit  Total

 (Number)
October 20, 2015              -  $                 -  $                 -  $                 -
Issuance of shares          200                200                    -                200
Net loss              -                    -            (1,991)           (1,991)

July 31, 2016 and April 30, 2017          200  $            200  $         (1,991) $         (1,791)

 Share Capital
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Statements of Cash Flow

April 30, July 31,
For the Periods Ended 2017 2016

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Net loss $ -     $ (1,991)
  Change in non-cash working capital:
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - 1,000

  Cash flow used by operating activities - (991)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
   Advances from related parties - 991
   Due from shareholders - (200)
   Issuance of common shares - 200

  Cash flow from financing activities - 991

INCREASE IN CASH FLOW - -

Cash - beginning of period - -

CASH - END OF PERIOD $ -     $ -

CASH FLOW SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Interest paid $ -     $ -

Income taxes paid $ -     $ -
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

1052624 B.C. Ltd. (the "Company") is incorporated provincially on October 20, 2015 under the
Business Corporations Act of British Columbia. The Company's principal business activity is network
security training. The address of the Company's registered office is 301-460 Nanaimo Street,
Vancouver, BC and the Company's principal place of business is at 121-3989 Henning Drive, Burnaby,
BC.

These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Company will continue as
a going concern, meaning it will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to
realize assets and discharge liabilities in the ordinary course of operations.  Different bases of
measurement may be appropriate if the Company was not expected to continue operations for the
foreseeable future.  As at April 30, 2017, the Company has not achieved profitable operations, has
accumulated losses of $1,991 (July 31, 2016 - $1,991) since inception and expects to incur further
losses in the development of its business, and has a working capital deficiency of $1,991 (July 31,
2016 - $1,991), all of which are material uncertainties that cast significant doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Company’s continuation as a going concern is dependent
upon support from related parties and/or shareholders and/or its ability to attain profitable operations
to generate funds. Although the Company has been successful in the past in obtaining advances from
related parties and shareholders as may be required, there is no assurance it will be able to do so in
the future. These financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the
outcome of this uncertainty.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC")
effective April 30, 2017.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial
assets measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out in Note 3. In addition,
these financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, except for cash
flow information.

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars.

Determination of functional currency

The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates. management has determined that the functional currency for the Company is the Canadian
dollar. The functional currency determination was conducted through an analysis of the consideration
factors identified in IAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
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Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

At initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories depending
on the purpose for which the instruments were acquired: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), held to maturity investments, available for sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and
receivables.

Subsequent measurement and changes in fair value will depend on their initial classification.  Financial
assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.
Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost. All other available for sale financial assets
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in other comprehensive income/loss
until the investment is derecognized or impaired at which time the amounts would be recorded in profit
or loss. Held to maturity investments and loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost.

The Company classified due from shareholders as loans and receivable.

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired. Financial assets are impaired when one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset have been impacted.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Use of Estimates and Judgements (continued)

a) Going concern

The assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern requires significant
judgment. The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles
applicable to a going concern, as disclosed in Note 1.
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The carrying amount of all financial assets, excluding accounts receivable, is directly reduced by the
impairment loss.  The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an
allowance.  Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account.  Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost are reversed in subsequent
periods if the amount of the loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized.  Impairment losses on available for sale financial
assets are not reversed.

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, or other financial liabilities, as
appropriate.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial liabilities
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The Company classified accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to related party as other
financial liabilities.

Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.  A transaction is considered to be a related
party transaction when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties.

Provisions

Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past events
where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation estimated at the end of each reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount receivable can be measured reliably.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instrument (continued)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income taxes

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in shareholders' equity, in which case the income
tax is also recognized in shareholders' equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.

In general, deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of asset and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income
tax is determined on a non-discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset
or liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the assets
can be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings available to common shareholders by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted earnings per
share is computed similar to basic earnings per share except that the weighted average number of
shares outstanding is increased to include additional shares for the assumed exercise of stock options
and warrants, if dilutive. The number of additional shares is calculated by assuming that outstanding
stock options and warrants were exercised and that the proceeds from such exercises were used to
acquire common stock at the average market price during the reporting periods. In a loss period,
potentially dilutive common shares are excluded from the loss per share calculation as the effect would
be anti-dilutive.

Future accounting pronouncements

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of
the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9 was issued in December 2009, effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early adoption permitted if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015, and
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments.
Management anticipates that this standard will be adopted in the Company's financial statements for
the period beginning August 1, 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption
of this standard on its financial statements.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Future accounting pronouncements (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

Effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2019, the scope of IFRS 16 includes leases
of all assets, with certain exceptions. A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. IFRS
16 requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model in a similar way
to finance leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees- leases
of 'low-value' assets (e.g. personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of
12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term,
a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability
as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting is substantially unchanged from today's
accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. The
company is currently evaluating the impact of IFRS 16 on its financial statements and plans to adopt
the new standard on the required effective date.

There are no other IFRS or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that may have a material
impact on the Company.
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4. DUE TO RELATED PARTY

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

Due to 1052503 B.C. Ltd. (dba CL2G Consulting) $ 991     $ 991

Advances to the above company, related by common shareholders, are not secured, non-interest
bearing and have no set repayment terms.  This company are related by common shareholders.

5. SHARE CAPITAL

 Authorized:
Unlimited Class "A" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, without par value
Unlimited Class "B" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "C" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "D" voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "E" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "F" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "G" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "H" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "I" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "J" non-voting, participating, variable dividends, common shares, $1.00 par value
Unlimited Class "K" non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, retractable, redeemable at

a price to be determined by the directors, preferred shares, $0.01 par value, which is
equal to the paid-up capital

Unlimited Class "L", non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, redeemable at a price to
be determined by the directors, preferred shares, $1.00 par value, which is equal to the
paid-up capital

Unlimited Class "M", non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, redeemable at $500 per
share, preferred shares, $0.10 par value, which is equal to the paid-up capital

Unlimited Class "N", non-voting, participating, non-cumulative dividends, redeemable at $1,000 per
share preferred shares, $1,000.00 par value, which is equal to the paid-up capital

April 30, July 31,
2017 2016

 Issued:
100 Common "Class A" voting shares $ 100     $ 100

50 Common "Class E" non-voting shares 50 50
50 Common "Class F" non-voting shares 50 50

$ 200     $ 200

On October 20, 2015, 100 common "Class A" voting shares were issued for $1.00 per share.

     On October 20, 2015, 50 common "Class E" non-voting shares were issued for $1.00 per share.

     On October 20, 2015, 50 common "Class F" non-voting shares were issued for $1.00 per share.
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6. INCOME TAXES

As at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016, the effective tax rate of income tax varies from the statutory
rate as follows:

April 30,
2017

July 31,
2016

Income (loss) before income taxes $ - $ (1,991)
Statutory tax rates 26% 26%
Expected income tax recovery at statutory rates - (518)
Non-deductible items - 64
Change in unrecognized tax benefits - 454

Income tax expense (recovery) $ - $ -

There were no significant unrecognized deferred income tax assets at April 30, 2017 and July 31,
2016.

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments measured at fair value are classified into one of three levels in the fair value
hierarchy according to the relative reliability of the inputs used to estimate the fair values.  The three
levels of the fair value hierarchy are:

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liabilities either
directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 – Inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The fair value of these assets and liabilities approximates their respective carrying amounts due to
their short term nature except as otherwise noted. The Company does not currently hold any financial
instruments that are carried at fair value.

The Company is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive
risk management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations.  The
Company is not exposed to significant credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations associated with financial
liabilities in full.  The Company manages liquidity risk through the management of its capital structure,
as outlined in note 8. As at April 30, 2017 and July 31, 2016, the Company had a working capital
deficiency of $1,991.  All of the Company’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities of 30 days
or due on demand and are subject to normal trade terms. The Company will require financing from
lenders, shareholders and other investors to generate sufficient capital to meet its short term business
requirements.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices.  Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk to the company's earnings that arise from fluctuations of foreign exchange
rates and the degree of volatility of these rates.  The Company is not exposed to significant foreign
currency exchange risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a
change in the interest rates.  In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, the
Company manages exposure through its normal operating and financing activities.  The Company is
not exposed to significant interest rate risk.

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.  The Company is not exposed
to significant other price risk.

8. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern, to pursue the development of its business and to maintain a flexible capital structure which
optimizes the cost of capital within a framework of acceptable risk. In the management of capital, the
Company includes the components of shareholders’ equity (deficit), as well as cash.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust its
capital structure, the Company may issue new shares, acquire new debt, acquire or dispose of assets.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. There were no changes
in the Company’s approach to capital management during the period ended April 30, 2017.

9.  SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On May 12, 2017, the Company, 1052543 B.C. Ltd dba Synergy Solutions Management, 1052486
B.C. Ltd. dba SIL Design Studios, and 1052503 B.C. Ltd. dba CL2G Consulting (together, the “CL2G
Group”) entered into a letter agreement with Ravencrest Resources Inc. (“Ravencrest”) pursuant to
which Ravencrest will purchase certain assets and business operations of the CL2G Group.  As
consideration, Ravencrest will issue an aggregate of 8,080,000 common shares to the shareholders
of the CL2G Group.

Completion of the acquisition is contingent on a number of conditions precedent including receipt of
all requisite corporate, shareholder and regulatory approvals for the acquisition; completion by
Ravencrest of satisfactory due diligence review of the CL2G Group; execution of final transaction
documentation; and completion of concurrent financing by Ravencrest.
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         As at 

   
 

NOTES
June 30, 

2017 
September 30, 

2016  
     
ASSETS        

Current Assets        
Cash   $ 33,838 $ 73,669  
GST receivable   17,661  9,636  
Prepaid expenses    37,789  36,949  

Total Current Assets   89,288  120,254  

      

Non-Current Assets      
Plant & Equipment 4  738,639  481,947  
Total Non-Current Assets   738,639  481,947  

TOTAL ASSETS  $ 827,927 $ 602,201  

LIABILITIES 
    

 
Current Liabilities      
Trade payables and accrued liabilities 7 $ 1,400,613 $ 693,230  
Loan payable and accrued interest 5  224,970  206,970  
Total Current Liabilities   1,625,583  900,200  

EQUITY (DEFICIENCY) 
    

 
Share capital 6  2,601,024  2,601,024  
Contributed surplus 6  59,000  59,000  
Deficit   (3,457,680)  (2,958,023)  

Total Equity (Deficiency)   (797,656)  (297,999)  

      
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
(DEFICIENCY) 

  
$ 827,927 $ 602,201  

 
   

    
 
Subsequent event (Note 10) 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors on September 7, 2017:  
    
    
“Noel Avila”  “Leo Avila”  

Director  Director  
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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Notes 

Three months 
ended 

June 30,  
2017 

Three months 
ended 

June 30,  
2016 

Nine months 
ended 

June 30,  
2017 

Nine months 
ended 

June 30,  
2016 

      
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES          
Advertising and promotions  $ - $ - $ 749 $ 5,867
Consulting fees 7  -  23,792  16,480  61,281
Depreciation 4  1,164  1,259  3,491  3,777
Interest and bank charges 5  6,132  1,073  18,523  1,445
Investor relations   -  -  415  40,743
Legal and audit   36,829  28,488  38,134  105,670
Meals and entertainment     -  560
Office and general   11,360  10,588  23,603  45,341
Rent    110,383  202,635  372,742  455,929
Travel   -  5  6,619  5,789
Utilities   6,091  3,733  18,901  14,631
        

NET LOSS FOR THE PERIOD 
 

$ (171,959) $ (271,573) $ (499,657) $ (741,033)
 
LOSS PER SHARE 
Basic and diluted 

  
 
$ (0.00) $ (0.00) $ (0.01) $ (0.01)

 
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF 
SHARES OUTSTANDING 

 

60,133,334 60,133,334

 

60,133,334  60,133,334
Basic and diluted          
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 SHARE CAPITAL    

 

NUMBER OF 
CLASS A 
COMMON 
SHARES 

 
AMOUNT 

$ 

NUMBER OF 
CLASS B 
COMMON 
SHARES 

 
AMOUNT 

$ 

NUMBER 
OF 

COMMON 
SHARES 

AMOUNT 
$ 

CONTRIBUTED 
SURPLUS 

$ 
DEFICIT 

$ 

TOTAL EQUITY 
(DEFICIENCY) 

$ 
          
         
Balances at September 30, 2015  - - 60,133,334 2,601,024 - - 59,000 (2,034,829) 625,195 
Exchange of shares (Note 6) - - (60,133,334) (2,601,024) 60,133,334 2,601,024 - - - 
Net loss for the period - - - - - - - (741,033) (741,033) 
         
Balances at June 30, 2016 - - - - 60,133,334 2,601,024 59,000 (2,775,862) (115,838) 
Net loss for the period - - - - - - - (182,161) (182,161) 
         

Balances at September 30, 2016 - - - - 60,133,334 2,601,024 59,000 (2,958,023) (297,999) 
Net loss for the period - - - - - - - (499,657) (499,657) 
    
Balances at June 30, 2017 - - - - 60,133,334 2,601,024 59,000 (3,457,680) (797,656) 
         
         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements. 
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Notes 

Nine months  
Ended June 30,  

2017 

Nine months  
Ended June 30, 

2016 
    
OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Net loss for the the period  $ (499,657) $ (741,034)
Items not involving cash:     
    Depreciation  3,491 3,777
Changes in non-cash working capital items:     

Accrued interest  18,000 1,000
    GST receivable   (8,025)  (9,626)
 Prepaid expenses   (840)  8,187
 Trade payables and accrued liabilities   451,093  257,737
Cash used in operating activities   (35,938)  (479,959)

INVESTING ACTIVITY 
  

  
Purchase of equipment   (3,893)  (175,049)
Cash used in investing activity   (3,893)  (175,049)

FINANCING ACTIVITY 
  

  
Loans (net)   -  200,000
Cash provided by financing activity   -  200,000

Net decrease in cash 
  

(39,837)  (455,008)
Cash, beginning of period   73,669  660,831

Cash, end of period 
 

$ 33,838 $ 205,823

 
 

 
 

 

Supplemental cash flow information: 
 

   

Interest paid 
 

$ - $ -

Income taxes paid 
 

$ - $ -

 
 

   
Purchase of equipment included in trade payables and 
accrued liabilities 

 
$ 256,290 $ -
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1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN 
  

Alberta Green Biotech Inc. (the “Company” or “AGB”) was incorporated on December 24, 2013, 
under the laws of the province of Alberta, Canada, and its principal activity is the development of 
a medical marijuana license.  The address of the Company’s corporate office and principal place 
of business is 1131 72 Street SW, Edmonton, Alberta, T6X 0N8. 
 

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") applicable to a going concern, which assumes the realization of 
assets and discharge of liabilities in the normal course of business for the foreseeable future.  
The Company has incurred losses from inception of $3,457,680 and has a working capital 
deficiency of $1,536,295 as at June 30, 2017. The Company needs to raise sufficient capital to 
fund its planned operations, administration expenses and future acquisitions.  The Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to attain future profitable 
operations and to obtain the necessary financing to meet its obligations and repay its liabilities 
arising from normal business operations when they come due.  As at June 30, 2017, the 
Company had not yet achieved profitable operations and expects to incur further losses in the 
development of its business plan, all of which may cast significant doubt about the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. These financial statements do not include any adjustments 
to the amounts and classification of assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the 
Company not be able to continue as a going concern. 

 
 
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

Statement of Compliance  
 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International 
Accounting Standards (“IAS”) 34, Intertim Fincial Reporting. They do not include all the 
information required for full annual financial statemetns and therefore should be read in 
conjunction with the financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended September 
30, 2016. Selected explanatory notes are included to explain events and transactions that are 
significant to an understanding of the changes to the Company’s financial position and 
performance since the last annual financial statements.  
 
Basis of Measurement 
 
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.  In addition, these 
financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, except for cash 
flow information.  
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies, estimates and judgments, methods of computation and presentation 
applied in these condensed financial statements are consistent with those of the previous 
financial year.  Accordingly, the condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction 
with the Company’s most recent annual financial statements.  

 
 
4.          PLANT & EQUIPMENT 
 

 COMPUTER 
EQUIPMENT 

LEASEHOLD 
IMPROVEMENTS 

TOTAL

Cost:       

Balance at September 30, 2015 $ 1,218 $ 220,807 $ 222,025
Additions  15,935  249,389  265,324
Balance at September 30, 2016  17,153  470,196  487,349
Additions  3,761  256,422  260,183
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 20,914 $ 726,618 $ 747,532

Accumulated Depreciation:     
Balance at September 30, 2015 $        365 $              -  $ 365
Additions  5,037               -  5,037
Balance at September 30, 2016  5,402               -  5,402
Additions  3,491               -  3,491
Balance at June 30, 2017 $        8,893 $              -  $ 8,893

Net book value:     
Balance at September 30, 2016 $ 11,751 $ 470,196 $ 481,947
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 12,021  $ 726,618* $ 738,639

 
*No depreciation has been taken on the leasehold improvements as at June 30, 2017, as the 
facility is not available for use. 

 
 
5.         LOAN PAYABLE AND ACCRUED INTEREST 
 

On June 16, 2016, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a shareholder. The principal 
amount of the loan is $200,000, bears interest at the rate of 12% per annum, and is unsecured. 
The principal balance of the loan, together with all accrued and unpaid interest is payable on 
December 31, 2017. 
 
At June 30, 2017, accrued interest on the loan was $24,970. 
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6. SHARE CAPITAL 
 
a) Authorized 
 
Unlimited common shares with voting privileges and without par value; and 
Unlimited preferred shares without par value – none issued. 
 
b) Issued and outstanding 

 
Nine months ended June 30, 2017 
 
 In November 2016, the 5,000,000 common shares held in escrow were released. 

 
 
7.         RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
All related party transactions were within the normal course of business and have been recorded 
at amounts agreed to by the transacting parties. Amounts due to and due from related parties do 
not bear interest, are unsecured, have no fixed payment terms, and are due on demand. 
 
As at June 30, 2017, $203 was owed to related parties which is included in accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities.  
 
 

8.         FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
a)  Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

 
The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, trade payables and other accrued 
liabilities and loans payable.  The carrying values of these financial instruments approximate 
their fair values because of their short term nature and/or the existence of market related 
interest rates on the instruments.   
 
IFRS requires disclosures about the inputs to fair value measurements, including their 
classification within a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to fair value measurement.  The 
three levels of hierarchy are: 
 Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
 Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly or indirectly; and 
 Level 3 – Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. 

 
Cash is measured as Level 1. 
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8.         FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 

b)  Financial Instruments Risk  
 
The Company is exposed in varying degrees to a variety of financial instrument related risks 
as follows: 

 
Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an 
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.  The Company’s primary 
exposure to credit risk is on its bank accounts.  The Company’s bank accounts are held with 
a major bank in Canada.  As all of the Company’s cash is held by one bank in Canada, there 
is a concentration of credit risk.  This risk is managed by using a major bank that is a high 
credit quality financial institution as determined by rating agencies.  The Company is not 
exposed to credit risk on recoverable taxes, as these are due from the Government of 
Canada. 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk arises through the excess of financial obligations over available financial assets 
due at any point in time.  The Company’s objective in managing liquidity risk is to maintain 
sufficient readily available reserves in order to meet its liquidity requirements at any point in 
time.  The Company is dependent on the availability of credit from its suppliers and its ability 
to generate sufficient funds from its equity and debt financing to meet current and future 
obligations.  There is no guarantee that such financing will be available on terms acceptable 
to the Company (Note 1). 

 
Market risk  
 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market factors, such as foreign exchange rates, 
commodity prices, and interest rates will affect the Company’s net earnings or the value of 
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable limits, while maximizing returns.  Management has 
determined this risk to be minimal at this stage. 
 
Foreign currency exchange rate risk and commodity price risk 

 
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.  Commodity price 
risk is the risk that market values and future incomes will fluctuate because of changes in 
commodity prices.  The Company does not have any direct exposure to foreign currency 
exchange rate risk or commodity price risk. The Company had no forward exchange rate 
contracts or commodity price contracts in place as at June 30, 2017.  

 
Interest rate risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in 
market interest rates. As at June 30, 2017, the Company did not have any significant 
interest rate risk. 

   



ALBERTA GREEN BIOTECH INC. 
Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements 
Nine months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 

 

 
  Page	9	

 
 

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

c)  Capital Management 
 

The Company defines capital that it manages as shareholders' equity that is expected to be 
realized in cash. The Company raises capital through private and share offerings and 
related party loans and advances. Capital is managed in a manner consistent with the risk 
criteria and policies provided by the board of directors and followed by management. All 
sources of financing and major expenditures are analyzed by management and approved by 
the board of directors. 
 
The Company’s primary objectives when managing capital is to safeguard and maintain the 
Company’s  financial resources for continued operations and to fund programs to further 
advance their medical marijuana license. The Company is meeting its objective of managing 
capital through detailed review and the preparation of short-term and long-term cash flow 
analysis to maintain sufficient resources. 
 
The Company is able to scale its expenditure programs and the use of capital to address 
market conditions by reducing expenditures and the scope of operations during periods of 
economic downturn.  
 
There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the 
period ended June 30, 2017.  The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital 
requirements. 
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9. PROPOSED TRANSACTION 
 

On May 15, 2017, the Company entered into a letter agreement with Ravencrest Resources Inc 
(“Ravencrest”) and CL2G group of companies (the “CL2G Group”) (the “AGB Letter Agreement”). 
Ravencrest will acquire the CL2G Group (the “CL2G Acquisition”). Following the CL2G 
Acquisition, the resulting company (“Resulting Company”) will purchase all of the issued and 
outstanding shares of AGB (the “AGB Acquisition”)  and AGB will become a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Resulting Company. 
 
In consideration, the Resulting Company will issue 8,599,970 common shares to the 
shareholders of AGB. All AGB shareholders will enter into a pooling agreement with the Resulting 
Company (the “Pooling Agreement”), pursuant to which 75% of the common shares of the 
Resulting Company issued to the shareholders of AGB will be restricted from trading, with 15% of 
the aggregate number of common shares issued to the AGB shareholders being released from 
restriction of transfer on the expiration of each three month period following the closing of the 
AGB Acquisition (the “Release Period”).  If at any time during the Release Period AGB is issued a 
license to become a licensed producer under the Access to Cannabis for Medical Purposes 
Regulation, all common shares that remain subject to the Pooling Agreement will be released 
from restriction under the Pooling Agreement. 

 
In connection with the transaction, Ravencrest completed a bridge financing of CAD$700,000 
from certain accredited investors (the “Bridge Loan”). The Bridge Loan will accrue 8% interest per 
annum, is unsecured and has a maturity date of 12 months.  The lenders providing the Bridge 
Loan also received 5,600,000 Ravencrest warrants granted to each Lender on a pro-rata basis 
(the “Bonus Warrants”).  The Bonus Warrants were issued on the date of closing the Bridge Loan, 
has an exercise price of $0.05 and will expire 12 months from the date of closing the Bridge Loan.   
 
CAD$600,000 of the proceeds of the Bridge Loan will be advanced to AGB pursuant to a credit 
facility agreement (the “Credit Facility”).  The Credit Facility will accrue 8% interest per annum, is 
unsecured and has a maturity date of 24 months from the date of the first advance made under 
the Credit Facility.  The proceeds of the Credit Facility will be used by AGB for the purpose of 
paying current liabilities and operating expenses incurred prior to closing the AGB Acquisition and 
other general working capital purposes as the Resulting Company may approve.    
 
Completion of the CL2G Acquisition, AGB Acquisition, Bridge Loan and Credit Facility are all 
contingent on a number of conditions precedent including, receipt of all requisite corporate, 
shareholder and regulatory approvals for the CL2G Acquisition, receipt of requisite corporate, 
shareholder and regulatory approvals for the AGB Acquisition, completion by the Company of 
satisfactory due diligence review of CL2G and AGB; execution of final transaction documentation 
for each transaction and completion of the Financing. 

 
10. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 

On August 1, 2017, the Company signed the Credit Facility with Ravencrest. CAD $600,000 was 
made available to the Company. The Credit Facility accrues 8% interest per annum, is unsecured 
and has a maturity of 24 months from the date of the first advance made under the Credit Facility. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors of 
Alberta Green Biotech Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Alberta Green Biotech Inc., which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at September 30, 2016, and the statement of comprehensive loss, changes in equity (deficiency) and 
cash flows for the year  then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the  Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.  

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Alberta Green Biotech 
Inc. as at September 30, 2016 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards.  

Emphasis of matter 
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements which describes the material 
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the ability of Alberta Green Biotech Inc. to continue as a going concern.  



 

 
 

  
 

Other matter 
The financial statements of Alberta Green Biotech Inc. for the year ended September 30, 2015 were audited by another 
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on April 6, 2016. 

 

"Crowe MacKay LLP" 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Vancouver, British Columbia  
May 31, 2017 
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  As at 

   
 

NOTES 
September 30, 

2016 
September 30,  

2015  

    

ASSETS      

Current Assets      
Cash   $ 73,669 $ 660,831 
GST receivable   9,636    13,767 
Prepaid expenses    36,949  46,028 

Total Current Assets   120,254  720,626 

      

Non-Current Assets      

Plant & Equipment 4  481,947  221,660 

Total Non-Current Assets   481,947  221,660 

TOTAL ASSETS  $ 602,201 $      942,286 

LIABILITIES 
   

 
 

Current Liabilities      
Trade payables and accrued liabilities 7 $ 693,230 $ 317,091 
Loan payable and accrued interest 5  206,970           - 

Total Current Liabilities   900,200  317,091 

EQUITY (DEFICIENCY) 
   

 
 

Share capital 6  2,601,024  2,601,024 
Contributed surplus 6  59,000       59,000 
Deficit   (2,958,023)  (2,034,829) 

Total Equity (Deficiency)   (297,999)     625,195 

      

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (DEFICIENCY) 
 

$ 602,201 $ 
      

942,286 

 
   

  
Subsequent Event (Note 10) 
 
 
 
Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors on May 31, 2017:  

    

    

“Noel Avila”  “Leo Avila”  

Director  Director  

 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

  
 

Notes 

Year ended 
September 30, 

2016 

Year ended 
September 30, 

2015 

    
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES      
Advertising and promotions  $ 5,867 $ 77,080 
Consulting fees 6, 7  69,281  95,650 
Depreciation 4  5,037  365 
Interest and bank charges 5  7,475  515 
Investor relations   40,743  307,023 
Legal and audit   110,624  225,786 
Meals and entertainment   560  73 
Office and general   51,431  80,216 
Rent    607,905  635,654 
Travel   5,789  11,022 
Utilities   18,482  17,404 

      

NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR 
 

$ (923,194) $ (1,450,788) 

 
LOSS PER SHARE 
Basic and diluted 

 

$ (0.02) $ (0.03) 
 
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING  60,133,334  53,822,254 
Basic and diluted      
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 SHARE CAPITAL    

 

NUMBER OF 
CLASS A 
COMMON 
SHARES 

 
AMOUNT 

$ 

NUMBER OF 
CLASS B 
COMMON 
SHARES 

 
AMOUNT 

$ 

NUMBER 
OF 

COMMON 
SHARES 

AMOUNT 
$ 

CONTRIBUTED 
SURPLUS 

$ 
DEFICIT 

$ 

TOTAL EQUITY 
(DEFICIENCY) 

$ 

          
Balances at September 30, 2014 
(audited) 24,000,000 24 27,000,000 1,350,000               - - -  (584,041)    765,983 
Share capital issued - -   6,133,334   1,160,000 - - - -       1,160,000 
Share issuance costs – non cash - - -      (59,000) - - 59,000 - - 
Shares issued for debt - -   1,350,000        67,500 -            -            - -                       67,500 
Shares issued for consulting 
services - -   1,650,000        82,500 - - - -            82,500 
Exchange of shares (Note 6) (24,000,000) (24) 24,000,000               24 - - - - - 
Net loss for the year - - - -  -  - - (1,450,788)     (1,450,788)   
          
Balances at September 30, 2015  - - 60,133,334 2,601,024 - - 59,000 (2,034,829) 625,195 
Exchange of shares (Note 6) - - (60,133,334) (2,601,024) 60,133,334 2,601,024 - - - 
Net loss for the year - - - - - - - (923,194) (923,194) 
          
Balances at September 30, 2016  - - - - 60,133,334 2,601,024 59,000 (2,958,023) (297,999) 
         
         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

 

 
 
 

Year ended 
September 30, 

2016 

Year ended 
September 30, 

2015 

    
OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Net loss for the year  $ (923,194) $ (1,450,788) 
Items not involving cash:      
    Depreciation  5,037  365 
    Shares issued for consulting services   -  82,500 
Changes in non-cash working capital 
items: 

 
    

Accrued interest  6,970  - 
    GST receivable   4,131  (13,767) 
 Prepaid expenses   9,079  17,433 
 Trade payables and accrued liabilities   376,139  274,227 
Cash used In operating activities   (521,838)  (1,090,030) 

INVESTING ACTIVITY 
 

    
Purchase of equipment   (265,324)  (220,807) 
Cash used In investing activity   (265,324)   (220,807) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 

    
Proceeds on issuance of common shares   -  1,160,000 
Loans (net)   200,000  (14,826) 
Cash provided by financing activities   200,000  1,145,174 

Net decrease in cash 

 

 (587,162)  (165,663) 

Cash, beginning of year   660,831  826,494 

Cash, end of year 
 

$ 73,669 $ 660,831 

 
 

    

Interest paid 
 

$ - $ - 

Income taxes paid 
 

$ - $ - 

 
 

    

Shares issued for debt 
 

$ - $ 67,500 

Options issued for finders fees 
 

$ - $ 59,000 
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1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN 
  

Alberta Green Biotech Inc. (the “Company” or “AGB”) was incorporated on December 24, 2013, 
under the laws of the province of Alberta, Canada, and its principal activity is the development of a 
medical marijuana license.  The address of the Company’s corporate office and principal place of 
business is 1131 72 Street SW, Edmonton, Alberta, T6X 0N8. 
 

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") applicable to a going concern, which assumes the realization of 
assets and discharge of liabilities in the normal course of business for the foreseeable future.  The 
Company has incurred losses from inception of $2,958,023 and has a working capital deficiency of 
$779,946 as at September 30, 2016. The Company needs to raise sufficient capital to fund its 
planned operations, administration expenses and future acquisitions.  The Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to attain future profitable operations and 
to obtain the necessary financing to meet its obligations and repay its liabilities arising from normal 
business operations when they come due.  As at September 30, 2016, the Company had not yet 
achieved profitable operations and expects to incur further losses in the development of its 
business plan, all of which may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. These financial statements do not include any adjustments to the amounts and 
classification of assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the Company not be able to 
continue as a going concern. 

 
 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The financial statements were authorized for issue on May 31, 2017 by the directors of the 
Company. 

 
Statement of Compliance  
 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(“IASB”) and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 
(“IFRIC”).   
 
Basis of Measurement 
 

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.  In addition, these 
financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, except for cash 
flow information.  
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
a) Critical Accounting Judgments and Estimates  
 

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual outcomes 
could differ from these estimates. The financial statements include estimates which, by their 
nature, are uncertain. The impacts of such estimates are pervasive throughout the financial 
statements, and may require accounting adjustments based on future occurrences. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and may 
affect both the period of revision and future periods.  
 
Significant assumptions about the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty that 
management has made at the statement of financial position date, that could result in a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, in the event that actual results differ 
from assumptions made, relate to, but are not limited to, the following:  
 
Judgments: 
• The inputs used in assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax assets to the extent 

that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and that the 
company will have future taxable income; and 

• The determination of the going concern assumption. 
 

Estimates: 
• The estimated useful lives of property and equipment which are included in the statement 

of financial position and the related depreciation included in profit or loss for the period. 
 

b) Financial Instruments 
 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument to another entity.  Financial assets and financial liabilities 
are recognized on the statements of financial position at the time the Company becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 

 
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Measurement in subsequent periods 
is dependent on the classification of the financial instrument.  The Company classifies its 
financial instruments in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 
receivables, held-to-maturity, available-for-sale, and other financial liabilities. 
  
i) Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 
 

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are either ‘held-for-trading’ 
or classified at fair value through profit or loss.  They are initially and subsequently recorded 
at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss for the period.   
 

The Company has designated its cash as financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss. 
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3.         SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

b)   Financial Instruments (Continued) 
 

ii) Loans and Receivables  
 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market.  Such assets are recognized initially at 
fair value and subsequently on an amortized cost basis using the effective interest method, 
less any impairment losses.  They are included in current assets, except for maturities 
greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, which are classified as non-
current assets.   
 

The Company does not have any financial instruments designated as loans and 
receivables. 

 
iii) Held-to-Maturity  
 

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed maturities 
and fixed or determinable payments, and it is the Company’s intention to hold these 
investments to maturity.  They are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortized cost.   
 

The Company does not have any held-to-maturity financial assets. 
 

iv) Available-For-Sale  
 

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated 
as available-for-sale or are not classified in any other financial asset categories.  They are 
initially and subsequently measured at fair value and the changes in fair value, other than 
impairment losses are recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) and presented in 
the fair value reserve in shareholders’ equity.  When the financial assets are sold or an 
impairment write-down is required, losses accumulated in the fair value reserve recognized 
in shareholders’ equity are included in profit or loss.   
 

The Company does not have any available-for-sale financial assets. 
 

v) Other Financial Liabilities 
 

Other financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs on the date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s financial 
liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The 
Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, 
cancelled, or expired. 

 

The Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities are its trade payables and other accrued 
liabilities and loans payable, which are designated as other liabilities. 
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3.         SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other 
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.  As at 
September 30, 2016 and 2015, the Company had no cash equivalents. 

 
d) Income Taxes 
 

Current income tax 
 

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the Canadian taxation authorities. The tax rates and 
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at 
the reporting date. 
 
Current tax is recognized in net income except to the extent that it relates to a business 
combination or items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income or loss.  

 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions 
where appropriate. 
 
Deferred income tax 
 

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences at 
the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
for financial reporting purposes, and loss carryforwards. 
 
Deferred tax is recognized in net income except to the extent that it relates to a business 
combination or items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income or loss. 

 
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period and recognized only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.  

 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and 
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.  
 
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable 
right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred 
income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.  
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3.         SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

e) Net Loss Per Share 
 

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss available to common shareholders by 
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive 
earnings per share reflect the potential dilution of securities that could share in the earnings of 
an entity. In periods where a net loss is incurred, potentially dilutive common shares are 
excluded from the loss per share calculation as the effect would be anti-dilutive and basic and 
diluted loss per common share is the same. In a profit year, under the treasury stock method, 
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding used for the calculation of diluted 
earnings per share assumes that the proceeds to be received on the exercise of dilutive stock 
options and warrants are used to repurchase common shares at the average price during the 
year. 

 
f) Plant & Equipment 
 

Equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.  Equipment is depreciated over its estimated useful lives.  The cost of an 
item includes the purchase price and directly attributable costs to bring the asset to the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management.  Where an item of equipment comprises major components with different useful 
lives, the components are accounted for as separate items of equipment. 

 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the statement of income and comprehensive income during the financial period in 
which they are incurred.  
 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying 
amount and are recognized in profit or loss. 

 
Depreciation is recognized using the following rate and method: 

 
  

 Computer equipment 30% declining balance 
 Leasehold improvements straight-line over remaining term of the 

lease 
 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end 
and are adjusted if appropriate.  Plant & Equipment costs are not amortized until the asset is 
available for use. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ALBERTA GREEN BIOTECH INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 

 

 

 Page 13 

 

3.         SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

g) Share-Based Compensation 
 
The Company grants share-based awards to certain officers, employees, directors and other 
eligible persons. For equity-settled awards, the fair value is charged to profit or loss and 
credited to the related reserve account, on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, after 
adjusting for the estimated number of awards that are expected to vest.  
 
The fair value of the equity-settled awards is determined at the date of the grant. In calculating 
fair value, no account is taken of any vesting conditions, other than conditions linked to the 
price of the shares of the Company. The fair value is determined by using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model.  
 
At each statement of financial position date, the cumulative expense representing the extent to 
which the vesting period has expired and management’s best estimate of the awards that are 
ultimately expected to vest is computed. The movement in cumulative expense is recognised 
in profit or loss with a corresponding entry against the related reserve. No expense is 
recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest.  
 
Where equity instruments are granted to non-employees, they are recorded at the fair value of 
the goods or services received in profit or loss, unless they are related to the issuance of 
shares. Amounts related to the issuance of shares are recorded as a reduction of share capital. 
When the value of goods or services received in exchange for the share-based payment cannot 
be reliably estimated, the fair value is measured by use of a valuation model. The fair value of 
stock options granted to non-employees is re-measured at the earlier of each financial reporting 
or vesting date, and any adjustment is charged or credited to operations upon re-measurement. 

 
h) Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 
 

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these new standards on its financial 
statements. 

 
Amendments to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” 
 
These amendments (Disclosure Initiative) require that the following changes in liabilities arising 
from  financing  activities  are  disclosed  (to  the  extent  necessary):  (i)  changes  from  
financing cash  flows;  (ii)  changes  arising  from  obtaining  or  losing  control  of  subsidiaries  
or  other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair 
values; and  (v)  other  changes.    One  way  to  fulfil  the  new  disclosure  requirement  is  to  
provide  a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the statement of financial 
position for  liabilities  arising  from  financing  activities.  Finally,  the  amendments  state  that  
changes  in liabilities arising from financing activities must be disclosed separately from 
changes in other assets and liabilities. These amendments are effective for reporting periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2017. 
 
Amendments to IAS 12 “Income Taxes” 
 
These amendments, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amendments 
to IAS 12), clarify how to account for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured 
at fair value. These amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2017. 
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3.         SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

h) Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements (Continued) 
 
New Standard IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 
 
This new standard is a partial replacement of IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement”. IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is 
measured at amortized cost or fair value, replacing the multiple rules in IAS 39. The approach 
in IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments in the context of its 
business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The new 
standard also requires a single impairment method to be used, replacing the multiple 
impairment methods in IAS 39. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2018.  
 
New Standard IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” 
 
The IASB issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which provides a single 
principle-based framework to be applied to all contracts with customers. IFRS 15 replaces the 
previous  revenue  standard  IAS  18,  Revenue,  and  the  related  Interpretations  on revenue 
recognition.  The  standard  scopes  out  contracts  that  are  considered  to  be  lease  contracts, 
insurance contracts and financial instruments. The new standard is a control-based model as 
compared to the existing revenue standard which is primarily focused on risks and rewards. 
Under the new standard, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of a good or 
service. Transfer of control occurs when the customer has the ability to direct the use of and 
obtain the benefits of the good or service. This standard is effective for reporting periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2018. 
 
Amendments to IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” 
 
These amendments added guidance that introduces accounting requirements for cash-settled 
share-based payments that follow the same approach as used for equity-settled share-based 
payments.  They introduced an exception into IFRS 2 so that a share-based payment where 
the entity settles the share-based payment arrangement net is classified as equity-settled in its 
entirety, provided the share-based payment would have been classified as equity-settled had 
it not  included  the  net  settlement  feature.    Finally,  they  clarify  the  accounting  treatment 
in situations  where  a  cash-settled  share-based  payment  changes  to  an  equity-settled 
share-based payment because of modifications of the terms and conditions. These 
amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. 
 
New standard IFRS 16 “Leases” 
 
IFRS  16  was  issued  in  January  2016  and  specifies  how  an  IFRS  reporter  will  recognize, 
measure,  present  and  disclose  leases.  The  standard  provides  a  single  lessee  accounting 
model, requiring lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term 
is  12  months  or  less  or  the  underlying  asset  has  a  low  value.  Lessors  continue  to 
classify leases  as  operating  or  finance,  with  IFRS  16’s  approach  to  lessor  accounting 
substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17. This standard is effective for reporting 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. 
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3.         SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

i) Comparative Figures 

 
Certain comparatives figures have been reclassified in order to conform to the financial 
presentation adopted in the current period.  
 
 

4.          PLANT & EQUIPMENT 
 

 COMPUTER 
EQUIPMENT 

LEASEHOLD 
IMPROVEMENTS 

TOTAL 

Cost:       

Balance at September 30, 2014 $ 1,218 $ - $ 1,218 
Additions  -  220,807  220,807 
Balance at September 30, 2015  1,218  220,807  222,025 
Additions  15,935  249,389  265,324 
Balance at September 30, 2016 $ 17,153 $ 470,196 $ 487,349 

Accumulated Depreciation:  
 

 
 

 
 

Balance at September 30, 2014 $ - $ - $ - 
Additions         365               -  365 
Balance at September 30, 2015         365               -   365 
Additions  5,037               -  5,037 
Balance at September 30, 2016 $ 5,402 $              -  $ 5,402 

Net book value:       

Balance at September 30, 2015 $    853 $ 220,807* $ 221,660 
Balance at September 30, 2016 $ 11,751 $ 470,196* $ 481,947 

 
*No depreciation has been taken on the leasehold improvements as at September 30, 2016, and 
September 30, 2015, as the facility is not available for use. 
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5.         LOAN PAYABLE AND ACCRUED INTEREST 
 

On June 16, 2016, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a shareholder. The principal 
amount of the loan is $200,000, bears interest at the rate of 12% per annum, and is unsecured. 
The principal balance of the loan, together with all accrued and unpaid interest is payable on June 
16, 2017. 
 
At September 30, 2016, accrued interest on the loan was $6,970 (September 30, 2015 – $NIL). 

 
 

6. SHARE CAPITAL 
 
a) Authorized 
 
Unlimited common shares with voting privileges and without par value; and 
Unlimited preferred shares without par value – none issued. 
 
b) Issued and outstanding 

 
Year ended September 30, 2016 
 

• The Company amended its authorized share structure. All class B common shares were 
redesignated as common shares of the Company. Class A common shares, Class C 
common shares, Class D common shares, Class E preferred shares, Class F preferred 
shares, Class G preferred shares, and Class H common shares, all of which had no issued 
or outstanding shares, were cancelled. 
 

• On October 30, 2015, the Company negotiated a subscription agreement (the “Financing”) 
with a United States limited liability corporation for the issuance of 11,000,001 common 
shares for proceeds of $2,000,020. The Financing was subject to certain conditions. In 
connection with the the Financing, the Company put 5,000,000 common shares in escrow 
in April 2016. The Financing did not close and the escrow shares were released in 
November 2016. 

 
Year ended September 30, 2015 

 

• On December 22, 2014, the Company issued 1,350,000 class B common shares to settle 
$67,500 worth of trades payable and other accrued liabilities and issued 1,650,000 class 
B common shares in exchange for $82,500 of consulting services.  The shares were issued 
at $0.05 per share.  400,000 of these shares were issued to an officer of the Company. 
 

• On March 27, 2015, the Company issued 500,000 class B common shares at $0.10 per 
share for cash proceeds of $50,000. 

 

• On April 15, 2015, the Company issued 333,335 class B common shares at $0.15 per 
share for cash proceeds of $50,000. 
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6.         SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 
 

b) Issued and outstanding (Continued) 
 
Year ended September 30, 2015 (Continued) 
 

• On September 4, 2015, the Company exchanged 24,000,000 class A common shares 
issued to its founders for 24,000,000 class B common shares. 

 

• On September 24, 2015, the Company issued 5,299,999 class B common shares $0.20 
per share for cash proceeds of $1,060,000. 
 

c) Stock options 
 

There were no stock options granted during the year ended September 30, 2016. 
 

On September 4, 2015, the Company issued 400,000 stock options to a shareholder of the 
Company as compensation for the financing which occurred on the same date.  The options were 
issued with a fair value of $59,000 which has been recorded as a share issuance cost for fiscal 
2015. These options expire on September 4, 2020.    The fair value of each option granted has 
been estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes fair value option pricing model with the 
following assumptions: i) exercise price - $0.50; ii) stock price - $0.20; iii) Volatility – 120.23%; iv) 
term – 5 years; v) dividend rate – 0 ; and vi) risk free rate – 0.77%.   

 
 
7.         RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
All related party transactions were within the normal course of business and have been recorded 
at amounts agreed to by the transacting parties. Amounts due to and due from related parties do 
not bear interest, are unsecured, have no fixed payment terms, and are due on demand. 
 
As at September 30, 2016, $127 (September 30, 2015 - $156) was owed to related parties which 
is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.  
 

 
Key management compensation 
 

Key management personnel include those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Company as a whole. The Company has determined 
that key management personnel consist of executive and non-executive members of the 
Company’s Board of Directors and corporate officers. 
 
Remuneration attributed to key management personnel was as follows:  

 September 
30, 2016 

September 
30, 2015 

Short-term employment benefits, including 
administrative, consulting, directors’ and 
management fees 

 
$ 

 
 

16,000 
 
$ 

 
 
         - 

     

Total  16,000           - 
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8.         INCOME TAXES 
  
A reconciliation of the income tax provision computed at statutory rates to the reported income tax 
provision is as follows: 

 September 30, 
2016 

September 30, 
2015 

Statutory rate 15%  15% 

     
Expected income tax recovery $ 138,000 $ 218,000 

(Increase) decrease in income tax recovery 
resulting from: 

    

Effects of tax rate change  325,000  - 
Change in unrecognized deferred tax 
assets 

 (463,000)  (218,000) 

     
Income tax expense (recovery) $ - $ - 

 
The significant components of the Company’s future income tax assets, after applying enacted 
corporate income tax rates, are as follows: 

 September 30, 
2016 

September 30, 
2015 

Non-capital loss carried forward $ 767,000 $    305,000 
Property and equipment  1,000  - 
Less:  unrecognized deferred tax assets  (768,000)  (305,000) 

 $ - $          - 
 

The Company has recorded a valuation allowance against its future income tax assets based on 
the extent to which it is more likely-than-not that sufficient taxable income will not be realized in the 
future to utilize all future tax assets. 

 
At September 30, 2016, the Company had non-capital losses carried forward for tax purposes, 
which are available to reduce taxable income of future years of approximately $2,952,000. The 
losses expire starting in 2034 to 2036. 

 
9.         FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
a)  Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

 
The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, trade payables and other accrued 
liabilities and loans payable.  The carrying values of these financial instruments approximate 
their fair values because of their short term nature and/or the existence of market related 
interest rates on the instruments.   
 
IFRS requires disclosures about the inputs to fair value measurements, including their 
classification within a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to fair value measurement.  The three 
levels of hierarchy are: 
• Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
• Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly or indirectly; and 
• Level 3 – Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. 

 
Cash is measured as Level 1.  
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9. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 

b)  Financial Instruments Risk 
 

The Company is exposed in varying degrees to a variety of financial instrument related risks 
as follows: 

 
Credit risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation 
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.  The Company’s primary exposure to credit 
risk is on its bank accounts.  The Company’s bank accounts are held with a major bank in 
Canada.  As all of the Company’s cash is held by one bank in Canada, there is a concentration 
of credit risk.  This risk is managed by using a major bank that is a high credit quality financial 
institution as determined by rating agencies.  The Company is not exposed to credit risk on 
recoverable taxes, as these are due from the Government of Canada. 
 
Liquidity risk 
 

Liquidity risk arises through the excess of financial obligations over available financial assets 
due at any point in time.  The Company’s objective in managing liquidity risk is to maintain 
sufficient readily available reserves in order to meet its liquidity requirements at any point in 
time.  The Company is dependent on the availability of credit from its suppliers and its ability 
to generate sufficient funds from its equity and debt financing to meet current and future 
obligations.  There is no guarantee that such financing will be available on terms acceptable 
to the Company (Note 1). 

 
Market risk  
 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market factors, such as foreign exchange rates, 
commodity prices, and interest rates will affect the Company’s net earnings or the value of 
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable limits, while maximizing returns.  Management has 
determined this risk to be minimal at this stage. 
 
Foreign currency exchange rate risk and commodity price risk 

 

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.  Commodity price risk is the risk 
that market values and future incomes will fluctuate because of changes in commodity prices.  
The Company does not have any direct exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk or 
commodity price risk. The Company had no forward exchange rate contracts or commodity 
price contracts in place as at September 30, 2016.  

 
Interest rate risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market 
interest rates. As at September 30, 2016, the Company did not have any significant interest 
rate risk. 
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9.         FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 
c)  Capital Management 
 

The Company defines capital that it manages as shareholders' equity that is expected to be 
realized in cash. The Company raises capital through private and share offerings and related 
party loans and advances. Capital is managed in a manner consistent with the risk criteria 
and policies provided by the board of directors and followed by management. All sources of 
financing and major expenditures are analyzed by management and approved by the board 
of directors. 
 
The Company’s primary objectives when managing capital is to safeguard and maintain the 
Company’s  financial resources for continued operations and to fund programs to further 
advance their medical marijuana license. The Company is meeting its objective of managing 
capital through detailed review and the preparation of short-term and long-term cash flow 
analysis to maintain sufficient resources. 
 
The Company is able to scale its expenditure programs and the use of capital to address 
market conditions by reducing expenditures and the scope of operations during periods of 
economic downturn.  
 
There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year 
ended September 30, 2016.  The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital 
requirements. 

 

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 

Subsequent to September 30, 2016, the Company entered into a letter agreement with Ravencrest 
Resources Inc (“Ravencrest”) and CL2G group of companies (the “CL2G Group”) (the “AGB Letter 
Agreement”). Ravencrest will acquire the CL2G Group (the “CL2G Acquisition”). Following the 
CL2G Acquisition, the resulting company (“Resulting Company”) will purchase all of the issued and 
outstanding shares of AGB (the “AGB Acquisition”) and AGB will become a wholly owned subsidiary 
of the Resulting Company. 
 
In consideration, the Resulting Company will issue approximately 8,600,000 common shares to the 
shareholders of AGB. All AGB shareholders will enter into a pooling agreement with the Resulting 
Company (the “Pooling Agreement”), pursuant to which 75% of the common shares of the Resulting 
Company issued to the shareholders of AGB will be restricted from trading, with 15% of the 
aggregate number of common shares issued to the AGB shareholders being released from 
restriction of transfer on the expiration of each three month period following the closing of the AGB 
Acquisition (the “Release Period”).  If at any time during the Release Period AGB is issued a license 
to become a licensed producer under the Access to Cannabis for Medical Purposes Regulation, all 
common shares that remain subject to the Pooling Agreement will be released from restriction 
under the Pooling Agreement. 
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10. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (Continued) 
 

In connection with the transaction, Ravencrest completed a bridge financing of up to CAD$700,000 
from certain accredited investors (the “Bridge Loan”). The Bridge Loan will accrue 8% interest per 
annum, is unsecured and has a maturity date of 12 months.  The lenders providing the Bridge Loan 
also received 5,600,000 warrants granted to each Lender on a pro-rata basis (the “Bonus 
Warrants”).  The Bonus Warrants were issued on the date of closing the Bridge Loan, will have an 
exercise price of $0.05 and will expire 12 months from the date of closing of the Bridge Loan.   
 
CAD$600,000 of the proceeds of the Bridge Loan were advanced to AGB pursuant to a credit 
facility agreement (the “Credit Facility”).  The Credit Facility will accrue 8% interest per annum, is 
unsecured and has a maturity date of 24 months from the date of the first advance made under the 
Credit Facility.  The proceeds of the Credit Facility will be used by AGB for the purpose of paying 
current liabilities and operating expenses incurred prior to closing the AGB Acquisition and other 
general working capital purposes as the Resulting Company may approve.    
 
Completion of the CL2G Acquisition, AGB Acquisition, Bridge Loan and Credit Facility are all 
contingent on a number of conditions precedent including, receipt of all requisite corporate, 
shareholder and regulatory approvals for the CL2G Acquisition, receipt of requisite corporate, 
shareholder and regulatory approvals for the AGB Acquisition, completion by the Company of 
satisfactory due diligence review of CL2G and AGB; execution of final transaction documentation 
for each transaction and completion of the Financing. 

 
 




